
AGENDA REVIEW MEETING 
CHESTERFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, November 20, 2023 
6:00 PM 
 

 

I. Appointments – Mayor Bob Nation 
 

 
II. Council Committee Reports 

 
A. Planning and Public Works Committee – Chairperson Merrell Hansen, 

Ward IV 

 
1. Proposed Bill No. 3475 - Public Street Acceptance Burkhardt 

Place – An ordinance pertaining to the acceptance of Burkhardt 

Place as a public street in the City of Chesterfield. (First Reading) 
Planning and Public Works Committee recommends approval. 

 
2. Proposed Bill No. 3476 - Public Street Acceptance Grand 

Reserve – An ordinance pertaining to the acceptance of Grand 

Reserve Drive and Grand Reserve Court in Grand Reserve as public 
streets in the City of Chesterfield. (First Reading) Planning & 
Public Works Committee recommends approval.  

 
3. Proposed Bill No. 3477 – Parking Restriction on St. Louis 

County Roads - An ordinance amending Title III, Schedule VII 
Parking Restrictions of the Chesterfield City Code of ordinances by 
adding provisions thereto to restrict parking on Wings Corporate 

Drive, Buzz Westfall Drive, and Paul Haglin Drive. (First Reading) 
Planning & Public Works Committee recommends approval.  

 
4. Proposed Bill No. 3478 – Traffic Control Signals – Wild Horse 

Creek Road – An ordinance amending Title III, Schedule I of the 

ordinances of the City of Chesterfield by adding provisions thereto to 
include additional electric traffic control signals. (First Reading) 
Planning & Public Works Committee recommends approval.  

 
5. Snow Removal Recoupment Program for Private Streets - 2024 

Funding Authorization – A request for a 2024 Budget Amendment 
from General Fund – Fund Reserves to Account 001-072-5254 in the 
amount of $164,871 to fund the Snow Removal Recoupment 

Program in 2024. (Roll Call Vote) Planning & Public Works 
Committee recommends approval.  

 
6. Proposed Bill No. 3479 Public Street Acceptance Fienup Farms 

Plats 1 and 3 – An ordinance pertaining to the acceptance of 

Harvester Drive, Pine Summit Drive, Deer Antler Court, Fienup 



Farms Boulevard, and portions of Fienup Lake Drive and Patchwork 
Fields in Fienup Farms as public streets in the City of Chesterfield. 

(First Reading) Planning & Public Works Committee 
recommends approval. 

 
7. Next Meeting – Thursday, December 07, 2023 (5:30pm) 

 

 
B. Finance and Administration Committee – Chairperson Michael Moore, 

Ward III 

 
1. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 

 
 

C. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee – Chairperson Mary Monachella, 

Ward I 
 

1. River’s Edge Park Bike Trails Proposal – Recommendation to 
authorize Gateway Off-Road Cyclists (GORC) to build and maintain 
bike trails at River’s Edge Park. Parks, Recreation and Arts 

Committee recommends approval. 
 

2. Chesterfield Family Aquatic Center (CFAC) 2024 – 

Recommendation to reduce pool hours of operation during the last 
three weeks of the 2024 season and increase daily non-resident 

admission fee by $2.00. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee 
recommends approval. 
 

3. Cricket Consideration – Recommendation to develop and authorize 
a two-year license agreement with a Chesterfield Cricket advocacy 
group allowing them to fund, operate and maintain Cricket facilities 

on roughly four acres of CVAC park property. Parks, Recreation and 
Arts Committee recommends approval. 

 
4. Chesterfield Parkway Holiday Banners – Recommendation to 

approve the use of existing budgeted PRA FY2023 funds to install 

holiday banners on the light poles along Chesterfield Parkway West. 
Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee recommends approval. 

 
5. Miracle Field Renovations – Recommendation to accept the 

Municipal Parks Grant in Round 24 for Miracle Field and playground 

renovations at CVAC and to amend the FY2024 budget to include 
revenues and expenditures relative to the project, and to authorize 
the City Administrator to execute the grant agreement. Parks, 

Recreation and Arts Committee recommends approval. 
 

6. Central Park Public Art Sculpture – Recommendation to approve 
the privately funded public art proposal submitted by Rob Kilo for a 
wooden sculpture to be located at Central Park subject to positive 



core samples of the existing tree and a signed agreement with the 
donor. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee recommends 

approval. 
 

7. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 
 
 

D. Public Health and Safety Committee – Chairperson Mary Ann 
Mastorakos, Ward II 

 

1. Proposed Bill No. 3480 - Article XI Offenses – An Ordinance of the 
City of Chesterfield amending article XI offenses concerning drugs 

with respect to the legalization of adult use marijuana. (First 
Reading) Public Health and Safety Committee recommends 
approval. 

 
2. Proposed Bill No. 3481 - Firearms Regulations – An Ordinance of 

the City of Chesterfield amending sections 210.900 and 220.150 of 
the City municipal code related to firearms regulations. (First 
Reading) Public Health and Safety Committee recommends 

approval. 
 

3. Next Meeting – Not yet scheduled 

 
 

III. Report from the City Administrator & Other Items Requiring Action by 
City Council – Mike Geisel 

 

A. 2023 Crack Sealing Project – Recommendation to authorize the City 
Administrator to enter into an agreement with Sweetens Sealing 
Services in an amount not to exceed $100,000.  This project is 

funded within Account 120-079-5251. (Roll Call Vote) Public Works 
Director recommends approval.  

 
B.  Liquor License – Amrut Fusion (17392 Chesterfield Airport Rd) – 

has requested a new liquor license for retail sale of all kinds of 

intoxicating liquor by the drink, to be consumed on premise, and 
Sunday sales. (Voice Vote) Application has been reviewed by the 

Police Department and the Planning Department.  There are no 
known outstanding municipal violations 

 

 
IV. Other Legislation 

 

 
V. Unfinished Business 

 
 

VI. New Business 



 
VII. Adjournment 

 
 

NOTE:  City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other 
matters as may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for 
discussion at that time. 
 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the 

purpose of dealing with matters relating to one or more of the following:  legal actions, 
causes of action, litigation or privileged communications between the City’s representatives 
and its attorneys (RSMo 610.021(1) 1994; lease, purchase or sale of real estate (RSMo 
610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting employees with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(3)1994; Preparation, including any discussions or work product, on behalf 
of a public governmental body or its representatives for negotiations with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(9) 1994; and/or bidding specification (RSMo 610.021(11) 1994.  
 
PERSONS REQUIRING AN ACCOMMODATION TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING SHOULD CONTACT CITY CLERK VICKIE MCGOWND AT (636) 
537-6716, AT LEAST TWO (2) WORKDAYS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 



 

AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Chesterfield City Hall 
690 Chesterfield Parkway West 

Monday, November 20, 2023 
7:00 PM 

 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Bob Nation   

 
 

III. MOMENT OF SILENT PRAYER – Mayor Bob Nation  

 
 

IV. ROLL CALL –City Clerk Vickie McGownd 

 

 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Mayor Bob Nation  

 
A. F&A Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes – October 30, 2023 

 
B. Executive Session Meeting Minutes – October 30, 2023 

 
C. City Council Meeting Minutes – November 06, 2023 

 

D. Executive Session Meeting Minutes – November 06, 2023 
 

 

VI. INTRODUCTORY REMARKS – Mayor Bob Nation 

  
A. Thursday, November 23, 2023 – City Hall CLOSED (Thanksgiving Day) 

 
B. Friday, November 24, 2023 – City Hall CLOSED (Thanksgiving Holiday) 

 

C. Monday, November 27, 2023 – Planning Commission (7:00pm) 
 

D. Monday, December 04, 2023 – Public Hearing for 2024 Budget 

(6:45pm) 
 

E. Monday, December 04, 2023 – City Council (7:00pm) 
 



 

 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 
VIII. APPOINTMENTS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 
 

IX. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

A. Planning and Public Works Committee – Chairperson Merrell Hansen, 
Ward IV 
 

1. Proposed Bill No. 3475 - Public Street Acceptance Burkhardt Place 
– An ordinance pertaining to the acceptance of Burkhardt Place as a 

public street in the City of Chesterfield. (First Reading) Planning and 
Public Works Committee recommends approval. 

  

2. Proposed Bill No. 3476 - Public Street Acceptance Grand Reserve – 
An ordinance pertaining to the acceptance of Grand Reserve Drive and 

Grand Reserve Court in Grand Reserve as public streets in the City of 
Chesterfield. (First Reading) Planning & Public Works Committee 
recommends approval.  

  
3. Proposed Bill No. 3477 – Parking Restriction on St. Louis County 

Roads - An ordinance amending Title III, Schedule VII Parking 

Restrictions of the Chesterfield City Code of ordinances by adding 
provisions thereto to restrict parking on Wings Corporate Drive, Buzz 

Westfall Drive, and Paul Haglin Drive. (First Reading) Planning & 
Public Works Committee recommends approval.  

 

4. Proposed Bill No. 3478 – Traffic Control Signals – Wild Horse Creek 
Road – An ordinance amending Title III, Schedule I of the ordinances of 

the City of Chesterfield by adding provisions thereto to include 
additional electric traffic control signals. (First Reading) Planning & 
Public Works Committee recommends approval.  

   
5. Snow Removal Recoupment Program for Private Streets - 2024 

Funding Authorization – A request for a 2024 Budget Amendment from 

General Fund – Fund Reserves to Account 001-072-5254 in the amount 
of $164,871 to fund the Snow Removal Recoupment Program in 2024. 

(Roll Call Vote) Planning & Public Works Committee recommends 
approval.  

  

6. Proposed Bill No. 3479 Public Street Acceptance Fienup Farms 
Plats 1 and 3 – An ordinance pertaining to the acceptance of Harvester 
Drive, Pine Summit Drive, Deer Antler Court, Fienup Farms Boulevard, 

and portions of Fienup Lake Drive and Patchwork Fields in Fienup 



 

Farms as public streets in the City of Chesterfield. (First Reading) 
Planning & Public Works Committee recommends approval. 

 
7. Next Meeting – Thursday, December 07, 2023 (5:30pm) 

 
 

B. Finance and Administration Committee – Chairperson Michael Moore, 

Ward III 
 

1. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 

 
    

C. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee – Chairperson Mary Monachella, 
Ward I 

 

1. River’s Edge Park Bike Trails Proposal – Recommendation to 
authorize Gateway Off-Road Cyclists (GORC) to build and maintain bike 

trails at River’s Edge Park. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee 
recommends approval. 

 

2. Chesterfield Family Aquatic Center (CFAC) 2024 Recommendations 
– Recommendation to reduce pool hours of operation during the last 
three weeks of the 2024 season and increase daily non-resident 

admission fee by $2.00. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee 
recommends approval. 

 
3. Cricket Consideration – Recommendation to develop and authorize a 

two-year license agreement with a Chesterfield Cricket advocacy group 

allowing them to fund, operate and maintain Cricket facilities on roughly 
four acres of CVAC park property. Parks, Recreation and Arts 
Committee recommends approval. 

 
4. Chesterfield Parkway Holiday Banners – Recommendation to approve 

the use of existing budgeted PRA FY2023 funds to install holiday 
banners on the light poles along Chesterfield Parkway West. Parks, 
Recreation and Arts Committee recommends approval. 

 
5. Miracle Field Renovations – Recommendation to accept the Municipal 

Parks Grant in Round 24 for Miracle Field and playground renovations 
at CVAC and to amend the FY2024 budget to include revenues and 
expenditures relative to the project, and to authorize the City 

Administrator to execute the grant agreement. Parks, Recreation and 
Arts Committee recommends approval. 

 

6. Central Park Public Art Sculpture – Recommendation to approve the 
privately funded public art proposal submitted by Rob Kilo for a wooden 

sculpture to be located at Central Park subject to positive core samples 



 

of the existing tree and a signed agreement with the donor. Parks, 
Recreation and Arts Committee recommends approval. 

 
7. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 

 
 
D. Public Health and Safety Committee – Chairperson Mary Ann 

Mastorakos, Ward II 
 

1. Proposed Bill No. 3480 - Article XI Offenses – An Ordinance of the 

City of Chesterfield amending article XI offenses concerning drugs with 
respect to the legalization of adult use marijuana (First Reading) Public 

Health and Safety Committee recommends approval. 
 
2. Proposed Bill No. 3481 - Firearms Regulations – An Ordinance of the 

City of Chesterfield amending sections 210.900 and 220.150 of the City 
municipal code related to firearms regulations. (First Reading) Public 

Health and Safety Committee recommends approval. 
 

3. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 

 
 

X. REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR – Mike Geisel 
 

A. 2023 Crack Sealing Project – Recommendation to authorize the City 
Administrator to enter into an agreement with Sweetens Sealing Services in 

an amount not to exceed $100,000.  This project is funded within Account 
120-079-5251. (Roll Call Vote) Public Works Director recommends 
approval.  

 
B. Liquor License – Amrut Fusion (17392 Chesterfield Airport Rd) – has 

requested a new liquor license for retail sale of all kinds of intoxicating 

liquor by the drink, to be consumed on premise, and Sunday sales. (Voice 
Vote) Application has been reviewed by the Police Department and the 

Planning Department.  There are no known outstanding municipal 
violations 
 

 

XI. OTHER LEGISLATION 

 
 

XII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 

XIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 



 

XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
NOTE: City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other 
matters as may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for 
discussion at that time. 
 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the 
purpose of dealing with matters relating to one or more of the following: legal actions, 
causes of action, litigation or privileged communications between the City’s representatives 
and its attorneys (RSMo 610.021(1) 1994; lease, purchase or sale of real estate (RSMo 
610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting employees with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(3)1994; Preparation, including any discussions or work product, on behalf 
of a public governmental body or its representatives for negotiations with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(9) 1994; and/or bidding specification (RSMo 610.021(11) 1994. 
 
PERSONS REQUIRING AN ACCOMMODATION TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN 
THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING SHOULD CONTACT CITY CLERK VICKIE MCGOWND 
AT (636)537-6716, AT LEAST TWO (2) WORKDAYS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 



AGENDA REVIEW – MONDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2023 – 6:00 PM 
 
An AGENDA REVIEW meeting has been scheduled to start at 6:00 PM, on Monday, 
November 20, 2023.   

 
 
Please let me know, ASAP, if you will be unable to attend these meetings. 

 
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS  
 
Thursday, November 23, 2023 – City Hall CLOSED (Thanksgiving Day) 

 
Friday, November 24, 2023 – City Hall CLOSED (Thanksgiving Holiday) 

 
Monday, November 27, 2023 – Planning Commission (7:00pm) 

 

Monday, December 04, 2023 – Public Hearing for 2024 Budget (6:45pm) 
 

Monday, December 04, 2023 – City Council (7:00pm) 
 
 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS  
 
 
APPOINTMENTS 
 

There are no appointments scheduled for Monday’s meeting. 
 



 

 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Finance and Administration Committee of the Whole 
Record of Proceeding 

October 30, 2023 

 

 

The Finance & Administration Committee of the Whole met on October 30, 2023.  Those 

in attendance included:  Chairperson Michael Moore, Ward III; Council Committee 

Member Barbara McGuinness, Ward I; Council Committee Member Aaron Wahl, Ward 

II; Council Committee Member Gary Budoor, Ward IV; City Administrator Mike Geisel; 

and Finance Director Jeannette Kelly.  Those also in attendance included:  Mayor Bob 

Nation; Councilmember Mary Monachella, Ward I; Councilmember Mary Ann 

Mastorakos, Ward II; Councilmember Dan Hurt, Ward III; Councilmember Merrell 

Hansen, Ward IV; City Attorney Chris Graville; Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

Jim Eckrich; Director of Planning Justin Wyse; Director of Information Technology Matt 

Haug; Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts TW Dieckmann; Police Chief Ray Johnson; 

Captain Cheryl Funkhouser; Assistant Director of Finance Cathy Pagella; Assistant City 

Administrator Elliot Brown; and City Clerk Vickie McGownd.  There were 

approximately 2 other attendees. 

 

Chairperson Michael Moore called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

Chairperson Moore asked if there were any comments or changes to the October 9, 2023 

F&A Committee minutes.  Hearing none, Councilmember McGuinness made a motion, 

seconded by Councilmember Budoor, to approve the October 9, 2023 F&A Committee 

minutes.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result (4-0) and the 

motion was declared passed. 

 

Chairperson Moore asked if there were any comments or changes to the October 10, 2023 

F&A Committee of the Whole minutes.  Mayor Nation requested the following revision 

to the first sentence under “Merit Pool” on page two:  “Mr. Geisel explained that 

according to the current policy, the pay plan adjusts annually by the Consumer Price 

Index (CPI) for the twelve months ended June of the prior year.”  Councilmember 

McGuinness made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, to approve the 

October 10, 2023 F&A Committee of the Whole minutes, as amended.  A voice vote was 

taken with a unanimous affirmative result (6-0-2 – Councilmembers Monachella and 

Mastorakos abstained) and the motion was declared passed. 



 

 2 

 

Introduction 

 

City Administrator Mike Geisel and Director of Finance Jeannette Kelly summarized 

highlights from the 2024 budget presentation, previously communicated at the October 

10 meeting.  Questions were asked, and discussion ensued, pertaining to specific line 

items. 

 

Merit Pool 

 

City Administrator Mike Geisel briefly summarized the merit pool distribution process.  

Discussion ensued pertaining to various topics, including employee attraction and 

retention. 

 

Chairperson Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Hansen, to set the merit 

pool at 4% for the purpose of discussion.  Discussion ensued.  Councilmember 

Monachella made a motion to amend, seconded by Councilmember Hurt, to set the merit 

pool at 4.5%.  A roll call vote was taken on the motion to amend, with the following 

results:  Ayes – Wahl, Mastorakos, Budoor, Hurt, Moore, Hansen and Monachella.  Nays 

– McGuinness.  The motion to amend was declared passed. 

 

A roll call vote was taken on the amended motion to set the merit pool at 4.5%, with the 

following results:  Ayes – Wahl, Mastorakos, Budoor, Hurt, Moore, Hansen and 

Monachella.  Nays – McGuinness.  The amended motion was declared passed. 

 

Budget Action 

 

Councilmember McGuinness made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to 

allocate $2.5 million to the debt reserve fund in FY2023.  A roll call vote was taken with 

the following results:  Ayes – Mastorakos, Moore, Budoor, Monachella, Wahl, Hansen, 

McGuinness and Hurt.  Nays – None.  The motion was declared passed. 

 

Adjournment 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:16 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mike Geisel      Vickie McGownd 

City Administrator     City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED:  _______________ 



 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDING 

 

 

 MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

 AT 690 CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST 

 

NOVEMBER 6, 2023 

 
 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. 

 

Mayor Bob Nation led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance and followed with a moment 

of silent prayer.  

 

A roll call was taken with the following results: 

 

PRESENT ABSENT 

 

Mayor Bob Nation  

Councilmember Mary Monachella 

Councilmember Barbara McGuinness 

Councilmember Aaron Wahl 

Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos 

Councilmember Dan Hurt 

Councilmember Michael Moore 

Councilmember Merrell Hansen 

Councilmember Gary Budoor 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The minutes of the October 16, 2023 City Council meeting were submitted for approval. 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Wahl, to approve 

the October 16, 2023 City Council minutes.  A voice vote was taken with an affirmative 

result (7-0-1 – Councilmember Mastorakos abstained) and the motion was declared 

passed. 



 2 

 

The minutes of the October 16, 2023 Executive Session were submitted for approval. 

Councilmember Hansen made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to approve 

the October 16, 2023 Executive Session minutes.  A voice vote was taken with an 

affirmative result (7-0-1 – Councilmember Mastorakos abstained) and the motion was 

declared passed. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS 

 

Mayor Nation presented a proclamation to Parth Patel in recognition for being one of the 

first male cricketers from the state of Missouri to participate in a Cricket World Cup. 

 

Mayor Nation announced the appointment of Captain Cheryl Funkhouser as the City’s 

next Chief of Police, effective upon Chief Johnson’s retirement in January of 2024. 

 

Ms. Patricia Tocco, 14720 Whitebrook Drive, spoke regarding the budget. 

 

INTRODUCTORY REMARKS 

 

Mayor Nation announced that City Hall will be closed on Friday, November 10, in 

observance of Veteran’s Day. 

 

Mayor Nation announced that the next meeting of City Council is scheduled for Monday, 

November 20, at 7 p.m. 

 

APPOINTMENTS 

 

There were no appointments on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING – Wildhorse Village Special Business District 2023 Tax Rate 

 

Mayor Nation opened the public hearing and described the process. 

 

Director of Planning Justin Wyse presented information pertaining to the 2023 tax rate 

for the Wildhorse Village Special Business District.  It has become evident that there is 

insufficient time for St. Louis County to complete the process for collection of the special 

business district tax in 2023.  The proposed special business district budget shows 

revenues and expenditures of zero; therefore, the tax rate for 2023 will also be set at zero. 

 

There were no public comments during the public hearing. 

 

Mayor Nation declared the public hearing closed. 

 



 3 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ASSOCIATED LEGISLATION 

 

Planning & Public Works Committee 

 

Councilmember Merrell Hansen, Chairperson of the Planning & Public Works 

Committee, announced that the next meeting of this Committee is scheduled for 

Thursday, November 9, at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Finance & Administration Committee 

 

Bill No. 3473 Fixes the rate of taxation for the year 2023 and levies a tax on all 

real property made taxable by the law within the Wildhorse Village 

Special Business District in the City of Chesterfield Missouri  

(Second Reading)  The Wildhorse Village advisory board and 

the Finance and Administration Committee of the Whole 

recommend approval 

 

Councilmember Michael Moore, Chairperson of the Finance & Administration 

Committee, made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Hansen, for the second reading 

of Bill No. 3473.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the 

motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3473 was read for the second time.  A roll call vote 

was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3473 with the following results:  Ayes 

– Mastorakos, Budoor, Hansen, McGuinness, Wahl, Hurt, Moore and Monachella.  Nays 

– None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3473 approved, passed it and it 

became ORDINANCE NO. 3263. 

 

Bill No. 3474 Authorizes the City Administrator to Execute Contract on behalf of 

the City of Chesterfield, Missouri with St. Louis County, Missouri 

for collection services for various taxes and fees  (Second Reading)  

City Staff and the Finance and Administration Committee of the 

Whole recommend approval 

 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Monachella, for the 

second reading of Bill No. 3474.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 

result and the motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3474 was read for the second time.  

A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3474 with the 

following results:  Ayes – Moore, McGuinness, Monachella, Budoor, Wahl, Mastorakos, 

Hurt and Hansen.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3474 

approved, passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 3264. 

 

Bill No. 3465 Amends section 110.380 of the City Code related to the City 

Council’s rules of procedure  (Second Reading)  Recommended by 

the City Attorney and the Finance and Administration 

Committee 

 



 4 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, for the 

second reading of Bill No. 3465.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 

result and the motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3465 was read for the second time.  

A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3465 with the 

following results:  Ayes – Wahl, McGuinness, Mastorakos, Hansen, Hurt, Moore, Budoor 

and Monachella.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3465 

approved, passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 3265. 

 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember McGuinness, to 

approve and direct a budget transfer in the amount of $2.5 million from the General 

Fund-Fund Reserves in excess of the 40% reserve policy, to the Debt Pre-payment Fund 

as recommended unanimously by the Finance and Administration Committee of the 

Whole.  A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – Monachella, 

Hansen, Budoor, Mastorakos, Hurt, Moore, McGuinness and Wahl.  Nays – None.  

Mayor Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

Councilmember Moore announced that the next meeting of this Committee, scheduled for 

Tuesday, November 14, at 5:30 p.m., has been canceled. 

 

Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee 

 

Councilmember Mary Monachella, Chairperson of the Parks, Recreation & Arts 

Committee, announced that the Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee met on November 1, 

and actions from that meeting will be addressed at the next City Council meeting. 

 

Public Health & Safety Committee 

 

Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos, Chairperson of the Public Health & Safety 

Committee, announced that the next meeting of this Committee is scheduled for Tuesday, 

November 7, at 2:00 p.m. 

 

REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 

Assistant City Administrator Elliot Brown indicated that he had no report this evening, 

but there was one action item under “Other Legislation” for which he would be 

requesting a motion. 

 

OTHER LEGISLATION 

 

Bill No. 3472 Authorizes the Mayor of the City to enter into a First Amendment to 

the redevelopment agreement; and authorizes further actions in 

connection therewith  (Second Reading) 

 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, for the 

second reading of Bill No. 3472.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 

result and the motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3472 was read for the second time.  



 5 

A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3472 with the 

following results:  Ayes – Budoor, Monachella, McGuinness, Wahl, Hurt, Mastorakos, 

Moore and Hansen.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3472 

approved, passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 3266. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

There was no unfinished business scheduled on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

There was no new business. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Nation adjourned the meeting at 7:29 

p.m. 

 

 

 

 

          

Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________  

Vickie McGownd, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL:  __________________ 

 



PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Merrell Hansen 

Vice-Chair:  Councilmember Dan Hurt 

 

 
Proposed Bill No. 3475 - Public Street Acceptance Burkhardt Place – An 
ordinance pertaining to the acceptance of Burkhardt Place as a public street in the 

City of Chesterfield. (First Reading) Planning and Public Works Committee 
recommends approval. 

  
Proposed Bill No. 3476 - Public Street Acceptance Grand Reserve – An 
ordinance pertaining to the acceptance of Grand Reserve Drive and Grand Reserve 

Court in Grand Reserve as public streets in the City of Chesterfield. (First Reading) 
Planning & Public Works Committee recommends approval.  

  
Proposed Bill No. 3477 – Parking Restriction on St. Louis County Roads - An 
ordinance amending Title III, Schedule VII Parking Restrictions of the Chesterfield 

City Code of ordinances by adding provisions thereto to restrict parking on Wings 
Corporate Drive, Buzz Westfall Drive, and Paul Haglin Drive. (First Reading) 
Planning & Public Works Committee recommends approval.  

 
Proposed Bill No. 3478 – Traffic Control Signals – Wild Horse Creek Road – An 

ordinance amending Title III, Schedule I of the ordinances of the City of Chesterfield 
by adding provisions thereto to include additional electric traffic control signals. 
(First Reading) Planning & Public Works Committee recommends approval.  

   
Snow Removal Recoupment Program for Private Streets - 2024 Funding 
Authorization – A request for a 2024 Budget Amendment from General Fund – 

Fund Reserves to Account 001-072-5254 in the amount of $164,871 to fund the 
Snow Removal Recoupment Program in 2024. (Roll Call Vote) Planning & Public 

Works Committee recommends approval.  
  
Proposed Bill No. 3479 Public Street Acceptance Fienup Farms Plats 1 and 3 – 

An ordinance pertaining to the acceptance of Harvester Drive, Pine Summit Drive, 
Deer Antler Court, Fienup Farms Boulevard, and portions of Fienup Lake Drive and 

Patchwork Fields in Fienup Farms as public streets in the City of Chesterfield. 
(First Reading) Planning & Public Works Committee recommends approval. 
 

 
NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of the Planning and Public Works Committee is scheduled for 
Thursday, December 7th, 2023, at 5:30pm. 

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Director 
of Planning - Justin Wyse, Director of Public Works – Jim Eckrich, or me prior to 

Monday’s meeting.   



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Mike Geisel, City Administrator  
 
FROM: Justin Wyse, Planning Director 
 James Eckrich, Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary  

 Thursday, November 9, 2023 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A meeting of the Planning and Public Works Committee of the Chesterfield City Council was held 
on Thursday, November 9, 2023 in Conference Room 101.  
 
In attendance were: Chair Merrell Hansen (Ward IV); Councilmember Mary Monachella (Ward 
I), Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos (Ward II), and Councilmember Dan Hurt (Ward III), 
 
Also in attendance were: Jim Eckrich, Director of Public Works/City Engineer; Justin Wyse, 
Planning Director served as Recording Secretary at the meeting. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MEETING SUMMARY 
    

A. Approval of the September 21, 2023 Committee Meeting Summary 
 
Councilmember Mastorakos made a motion to approve the Meeting Summary of  
September 21, 2023.   The motion was seconded by Councilmember Monachella and passed by 
a voice vote of 4-0.   
 
 
II. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 
III. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A.  2024 Proposed Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Schedule  
 
Councilmember Hurt motioned to approve the 2024 Planning & Public Works Meeting 
Schedule.   The motion was seconded by Councilmember Mastorakos and passed by a voice 
vote of 4-0. 
 
 

B.  Public Street Acceptance - Burkhardt Place  
 
 STAFF PRESENTATION 
Jim Eckrich, Director of Public Works/City Engineer explained that Public Works staff recently 
conducted an inspection of a portion of the Burkhardt Place which was constructed in association 
with the Wildhorse Village subdivision.  Based on the inspection, Staff has determined that the 
portion of Burkhardt Place meets the City of Chesterfield’s design and construction standards for 
acceptance as public street. 

 



Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
November 9, 2023 

2 

 
DISCUSSION 

 
Motion 
Councilmember Hurt made a motion to forward Public Street Acceptance - Burkhardt Place 
to City Council with a recommendation to approve.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Monachella and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 

 
 
 

C.  Public Street Acceptance - Grand Reserve  
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Jim Eckrich, Director of Public Works/City Engineer explained that Public Works staff recently 
conducted an inspection of the Grand Reserve subdivision. As part of the inspection, Staff has 
determined that the following streets meet the City of Chesterfield’s design and construction 
standards for acceptance as public streets: Grand Reserve Drive and Grand Reserve Court. 
 

DISCUSSION 

 
 
Motion 
Councilmember Monachella made a motion to forward Public Street Acceptance - Grand 
Reserve to City Council with a recommendation to approve.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Mastorakos and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 

 
  
 

D.   Parking Restriction on St. Louis County Roads  
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Jim Eckrich, Director of Public Works/City Engineer explained that St. Louis County has recently 
implemented parking restrictions on three roadways in Chesterfield Valley – Wings Corporate 
Drive, Buzz Westfall Drive, and Paul Haglin Drive.  
 
In order for the City of Chesterfield to enforce these parking restrictions it is necessary for them 
to be added to Title III, Schedule VII of the City of Chesterfield Municipal Code. 
 

DISCUSSION 

 
Motion 
Councilmember Mastorakos made a motion to forward Parking Restriction on St. Louis County 
Roads to City Council with a recommendation to approve. The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Monachella and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 

 
 

E.   Traffic Control Signals - Wild Horse Creek Road  
 
 STAFF PRESENTATION 



Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
November 9, 2023 

3 

Jim Eckrich, Director of Public Works/City Engineer explained that as part of the Wildhorse Village 
Development the developer has constructed several improvements to Wild Horse Creek Road 
and Chesterfield Parkway, including new traffic signals and a connection to Burkhardt Place. 
 
 

DISCUSSION 

 
Several Councilmembers discussed the traffic signals and warrants for traffic signals.  Mr. Eckrich 
clarified that the decision to install a traffic signal on a St. Louis County roadway solely resides 
with St. Louis County.  The matter before the Planning and Public Works Committee today is 
simply to recognize that the signals exist so that they can be incorporated into the City Code and 
enforced. 
 
Motion 
Councilmember Monachella made a motion to forward Traffic Control Signals - Wild Horse 
Creek Road to City Council with a recommendation to approve.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Mastorakos and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 

 
 

F.   Snow Removal Recoupment Program for Private Streets 2024 Funding 
Authorization  

  
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Jim Eckrich, Director of Public Works/City Engineer presented an overview of the Private Street 
Snow Removal Reimbursement Program.  There are currently 51 subdivisions eligible for 
reimbursement under the program and requests for reimbursement vary significantly from 
subdivision to subdivision.  
 

DISCUSSION 

 
Motion 
Councilmember Hurt made a motion to forward Snow Removal Recoupment Program for 
Private Streets - 2024 Funding Authorization to City Council with a recommendation to 
approve.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember_Monachella and passed by a voice 
vote of 4-0. 

 
Councilmember Hansen discussed the current limitations of the program and noted that while 
costs have significantly increased since the program was last reviewed, additional funding has 
not been allocated.  Mr. Eckrich explained the funding parameters set within the Policy and 
clarified that the allocation of additional funding would require a revision to the Policy.  
Councilmember Hansen made a motion to direct staff to review the funding allocation and bring 
information back to the Planning and Public Works Committee so that a determination can be 
made as to whether the Policy should be revised.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember 
Mastorakos and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 
 

G.  Public Street Acceptance - Fienup Farms – Plats 1 and 3 
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Jim Eckrich, Director of Public Works/City Engineer explained that Public Works staff recently 
conducted an inspection of Plats 1 and 3 of the Fienup Farms Subdivision.  As part of the 



Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
November 9, 2023 

4 

inspection, Staff has determined that the following streets meet the City of Chesterfield’s design 
and construction standards for acceptance as public streets:  
 

• Harvester Drive  (Plat 1) 

• Pine Summit Drive  (Plat 1) 

• Fienup Lake Drive  (Plat 1) 

• Deer Antler Court  (Plat 1) 

• Patchwork Fields  (Plat 1) 

• Fienup Farms Blvd. (Plat 3) 
 

DISCUSSION 

 
Motion 
Councilmember Hansen made a motion to forward Public Street Acceptance - Fienup Farms 
Plats 1 and 3 to City Council with a recommendation to approve.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Mastorakos and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 

 
IV. OTHER 
 
 
V. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:22 p.m. 
 



 

1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 

TO:  Michael O. Geisel, PE 
  City Administrator 
 

cc:  James A. Eckrich, PE 
Director of Public Works / City Engineer 

 

Justin Wyse, AICP, PTP 
Director of Planning 
 

Zachary S. Wolf, PE 
Assistant City Engineer 

 

FROM: Jeff Paskiewicz, PE 

Senior Civil Engineer 
 

DATE: October 20, 2023 
  

RE:  Public Street Acceptance  
Burkhardt Place 

 

 
Public Works staff recently conducted an inspection of a portion of the Burkhardt Place 
which was constructed in association with the Wildhorse Village subdivision.  Based on the 
inspection, we have determined that the portion of Burkhardt Place, as described below, 
meets the City of Chesterfield’s design and construction standards for acceptance as public 
street:   
 

(1) Burkhardt Place:   Approximately 2,417 feet; from 
Intersection of Wildhorse Creek Road to 
approximately 885 feet west of the intersection 
of Burkhardt Place and Veteran’s Place  

      Deed Book 23588, Page 3666 
 

A draft ordinance and a map showing the location of the above referenced street and the 
associated right-of-way dedication are attached.   
 
Action Recommended 
 
I recommend forwarding the acceptance of the above-referenced street and associated 
sidewalks to the Planning and Public Works Committee for its consideration. If the Planning 
and Public Works Committee recommends approval, the matter should be forwarded to City 
Council for consideration.   
 
 

 

Please forward to PPW for review and concurrence to the
full Council.

                                                                  2023-11-2

III.B.See Bill No. 3475



BILL NO. ____________________ 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO THE ACCEPTANCE OF BURKHARDT PLACE  AS 

A PUBLIC STREET IN THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield has approved the construction of the Wildhorse Village 

Subdivision; and 

 

WHEREAS, Burkhardt Place was intended to be a public street and was therefore 

constructed to the design standards of the Department of Public Works of the City of Chesterfield; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, Wildhorse Village LP has completed the required street improvements 

associated with Wildhorse Village as they relate to Burkhardt Place. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CHESTERFIELD, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  The following street is hereby accepted by the City of Chesterfield for future care and 

maintenance: 

 

(1) Burkhardt Place:    Approximately 2,417feet; from 

Intersection of Wildhorse Creek Road to 

approximately 885 feet west of the 

intersection of Burkhardt Place and 

Veteran’s Place 

       Deed Book 23588, Page 3666 

 

 

Section 2.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

 

Passed and approved this _________ day of __________________, 2023. 

 

 

 

__________________________________  ________________________________ 

PRESIDING OFFICER    Bob Nation, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

FIRST READING HELD: 

____________________ 

3475

















Burkhardt Place

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri

Parcels

10/20/2023, 1:34:23 PM

0 0.15 0.30.07 mi

0 0.25 0.50.13 km

1:9,000

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri |

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line

Jeff Paskiewicz
Callout
Portion of Burkhardt Place constructed as part of Wildhorse Village



 

1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 

TO:  Michael O. Geisel, PE 
  City Administrator 
 

cc:  James A. Eckrich, PE 
Director of Public Works / City Engineer 

 

Justin Wyse, AICP, PTP 
Director of Planning 
 
Zachary S. Wolff, PE 
Assistant City Engineer 

  

FROM: Jeff Paskiewicz, PE 

Senior Civil Engineer 
 

DATE: October 31, 2023 
  

RE:  Public Street Acceptance  
Grand Reserve 

 

 
Public Works staff recently conducted an inspection of the Grand Reserve subdivision.  As 
part of the inspection, we have determined that the following streets meet the City of 
Chesterfield’s design and construction standards for acceptance as public streets:   
 

(1) Grand Reserve Drive   Approximately 1,066 feet; from 
Olive Blvd. to intersection of Grand Reserve 
Court 

      Book 366, Page 65-66 
 
(2) Grand Reserve Court   Approximately 1,006 feet; from 

cul-de-sac to cul-de-sac 
      Book 366, Page 65-66 
 
 

A draft ordinance and a map showing the locations of the above referenced streets and the 
associated record plat exhibit are attached.   
 
Action Recommended 
 
I recommend forwarding the acceptance of the above-referenced street and associated 
sidewalks to the Planning and Public Works Committee for its consideration. If the Planning 
and Public Works Committee recommends approval, the matter should be forwarded to City 
Council for consideration.   
 
 

 

Please forward to PPW for review and concurrence to the
full Council

 2023-11-2

III.C.See Bill No. 3476



BILL NO. ____________________ 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO THE ACCEPTANCE OF GRAND RESERVE DRIVE 

AND GRAND RESERVE COURT IN GRAND RESERVE AS PUBLIC STREETS IN THE 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield has approved the construction of Grand Reserve; and 

 

WHEREAS, the streets in Grand Reserve were intended to be public streets and were 

therefore constructed to the design standards of the Department of Public Works of the City of 

Chesterfield. 

 

WHEREAS, Strategically Acquired Real Estate Investment Fund IV, LP and Hardesty 

Development Company, LLC have completed the required street improvements in Grand Reserve. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CHESTERFIELD, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  The following streets are hereby accepted by the City of Chesterfield for future care and 

maintenance: 

 

(1) Grand Reserve Drive   Approximately 1,066 feet; from Olive Blvd.  

       to intersection of Grand Reserve Court 

      Book 366, Page 65-66 

 

(2) Grand Reserve Court   Approximately 1,006 feet; from cul-de-sac 

to cul-de-sac 

      Book 366, Page 65-66 

 

 

Section 2.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

 

Passed and approved this _________ day of __________________, 2023. 

 

 

 

__________________________________  ________________________________ 

PRESIDING OFFICER    Bob Nation, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

FIRST READING HELD: 

____________________ 

3476



Grand Reserve

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri

Parcels

10/27/2023, 1:40:58 PM

0 0.04 0.070.02 mi

0 0.06 0.120.03 km

1:2,000

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri |

Jeff Paskiewicz
Text Box
OLIVE BLVD

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line

Jeff Paskiewicz
Text Box
GRAND RESERVE DRIVE AND GRAND RESERVE COURT







1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 

 

TO:   Michael O. Geisel, P.E. 
   City Administrator 
 
FROM:  James A. Eckrich, P.E. 
   Public Works Dir. / City Engineer
  
DATE:  October 24, 2023  
  
RE: Parking Restriction on St. Louis County Roads   
 

 
St. Louis County has recently implemented parking restrictions on three roadways in 

Chesterfield Valley – Wings Corporate Drive, Buzz Westfall Drive, and Paul Haglin 
Drive.  In order for the City of Chesterfield to enforce these parking restrictions it is 
necessary for them to be added to Title III, Schedule VII of the City of Chesterfield 

Municipal Code.  See the attached memorandum from Senior Civil Engineer Jeff 
Paskiewicz, which includes supporting documentation from St. Louis County and an 
exhibit showing the location of each of these St. Louis County maintained streets.   

 
Should you have questions or require additional information regarding this matter, 

please let me know.   
 
 

Action Recommended 
 

This matter should be forwarded to the Planning and Public Works Committee of City 
Council for consideration.  Should PPW concur with Staff’s recommendation it should 
recommend approval of the attached ordinance authorizing an update to Title III, 

Schedule VII of the City of Chesterfield Municipal Code.     

 

Please forward to PPW for review and recommendation
to the full City Council.

                                                                  2023-11-2

III.D.See Bill No. 3477



 
 
Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 
 

TO:  James A. Eckrich 
  Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

 
FROM: Jeff Paskiewicz, Senior Civil Engineer  
 
DATE: October 20, 2023 
  
RE:  Parking Restriction on Wings Corporate Drive,  

Buzz Westfall Drive, and Paul Haglin Drive 
 

 
St. Louis County maintains Wings Corporate Drive, Buzz Westfall Drive, and Paul 
Haglin Drive which are located within the Wings Corporate Estates Subdivision which 

is adjacent to the Spirit of St. Louis Airport.  Based on correspondence received from 
St. Louis County, the roads within the subdivision are being used for drag racing, 

burnouts, and large gatherings.  It was also indicated that cars traveling at high rates 
of speed have crashed through the airport fence. 

In order to provide an additional means for law enforcement to deter these types of 

unsafe activities, St. Louis County has passed Ordinance No. 28,841 which prohibits 
parking on Wings Corporate Drive, Buzz Westfall Drive, and Paul Haglin Drive.  This 
will not impact the parking for businesses located along the subject roads as all have 

off-street parking available and are not reliant on on-street parking.  Supporting 
information from St. Louis County is attached to this memo. 

In order for the City to assist with the enforcement of the parking restrictions, it is 
necessary for the City to adopt a similar  ordinance.  It is my recommendation that the 
attached draft ordinance restricting parking on Wings Corporate Drive, Buzz Westfall 

Drive, and Paul Haglin Drive be sent to Planning and Public Works Committee and if 
they so recommend, forwarded to City Council for approval.  

 
Attachments: St. Louis County Ordinance No. 28,841 
   Letter from County Executive dated July 14, 2023 

   Draft Parking Restriction Ordinance with Exhibit 
      
 

CC: Zach Wolff, Assistant City Engineer 



BILL NO.___________          ORDINANCE NO.___________ 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE III, SCHEDULE VII PARKING RESTRICTIONS 

OF THE CHESTERFIELD CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY ADDING PROVISIONS 

THERETO TO RESTRICT PARKING ON WINGS CORPORATE DRIVE, BUZZ 

WESTFALL DRIVE, AND PAUL HAGLIN DRIVE. 

 

WHEREAS, St. Louis County has been made aware of drag racing, burnouts, and large 

gatherings occurring on Wings Corporate Drive, Buzz Westfall Drive, and Paul Haglin Drive in 

the Wings Corporate Estates Subdivision; and  

 

WHEREAS, St. Louis County has passed Ordinance No. 28,841 restricting parking on 

Wings Corporate Drive, Buzz Westfall Drive, and Paul Haglin Drive in order to provide a means 

for additional law enforcement to deter unsafe vehicular activities ; and  

 

WHEREAS,  In order for the City to assist St. Louis County with law enforcement 

activities within the Wings Corporate Estates Subdivision it is necessary to amend the City’s 

parking restrictions   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  Schedule VII: Parking Restrictions of Title III of the Code of the City of 

Chesterfield is hereby amended by adding provisions thereto as follows: 

 

Part of Road or Street Where                        

Parking is Regulated 

 

Wings Corporate Drive, both sides, between 

North Eatherton Rd. and its terminus 

 

Buzz Westfall Drive, both sides, between 

Wings Corporate Drive and Paul Haglin Drive 

 

Paul Haglin Drive, both sides, between Buzz 

Westfall Drive and its terminus 

 

 

Parking Restriction 

 

 

No parking anytime 

 

 

 No Parking anytime 

 

 

 No Parking anytime 

 

 

 

Section 2. In all other respects, Title III is in full force and effect. 

 

 

 

Passed and approved this________day of _________________________, 2023. 

 

 

 

3477



       __________________________________ 

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

City Clerk    

 

FIRST READING HELD_______________  





Transportation:  1050 North Lindbergh Boulevard  Saint Louis, MO 63132  314/615-8504  FAX 314/615-8194 
Public Works:  41 South Central Avenue  Saint Louis, MO 63105  314/615-5184  FAX 314/615-7085 

Internet: http://www.stlouiscountymo.gov    RelayMO  800-735-2966 

 

July 3, 2023 

Honorable Sam Page 
St. Louis County Executive 
41 South Central Avenue 
St. Louis, Missouri 63105 

7th Council District 

RE: Request for Parking Restriction along Wings Corporate Drive, Buzz Westfall Drive, and Paul Haglin Drive 

Dear County Executive Page: 

We received a request from John Bales, Director of Aviation, Spirit of St. Louis Airport, to prohibit parking on Wings 
Corporate Drive, Buzz Westfall Drive, and Paul Haglin Drive. He indicated that these roads, located at the west end of the 
airport are used for drag racing, burnouts, and large gatherings. He also indicated that cars have crashed through the airport 
fence at high rates of speed. The request is intended to provide additional means for law enforcement to deter these types 
of unsafe events. Businesses along these roads all have off-street parking available. 

Due to the unsafe nature of the activities taking place along these roads, I have exercised my emergency powers to 
post “No Stopping, Standing, or Parking Any Time” signs along both sides of each of the streets. 

I respectfully request that you seek the appropriate legislation to enact the following amendments to the Saint Louis 
County Traffic Code: 

SCHEDULE IX 
PARKING RESTRICTIONS 

Part of Road or Street Where Parking is Regulated Regulation 

ADD: Wings Corporate Dr., both sides, between North Eatherton 
Rd. and its terminus 

No stopping, standing, or parking 
any time 

Buzz Westfall Dr., both sides, between Wings Corporate 
Dr. and Paul Haglin Dr. 

No stopping, standing, or parking 
any time 

Paul Haglin Dr., both sides, between Buzz Westfall Dr. 
and its terminus. 

No stopping, standing, or parking 
any time 

Sincerely, 

Stephanie Leon Streeter, P.E. 
Director  

SLS:RAP:cb 

cc:  Ray Johnson, Chief of Police, City of Chesterfield Police Department 

Sam Page 
County Executive 

Stephanie Leon Streeter, P.E. 
 Director 

http://www.stlouiscountymo.gov/


 
bcc: Ryan Pierce 

Christopher Hauber 
Wendy Firsching 
Milan Khadka 
Scott Gruben 
Adam Spector 

 







Wings Corporate Estates

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri

Parcels

10/20/2023, 11:19:11 AM

0 0.07 0.150.04 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,000

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri |

Jeff Paskiewicz
Text Box
WINGS CORPORATE DRIVE

Jeff Paskiewicz
Text Box
BUZZ WESTFALL DRIVE

Jeff Paskiewicz
Text Box
PAUL HAGLIN DRIVE

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line

Jeff Paskiewicz
Polygon Line



1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 

 

TO:   Michael O. Geisel, P.E. 
   City Administrator 
 
FROM:  James A. Eckrich, P.E. 
   Public Works Dir. / City Engineer
  
DATE:  October 24, 2023  
  
RE: Traffic Control Signals – Wild Horse Creek Road   
 

 
As part of the Wildhorse Village Development the developer has constructed several 

improvements to Wild Horse Creek Road and Chesterfield Parkway, including new 
traffic signals and a connection to Burkhardt Place.  These new traffic signals must 
be added to the City of Chesterfield Municipal Code, as detailed in the attached 

memorandum from Senior Civil Engineer Jeff Paskiewicz.  Please note that this 
memorandum includes an exhibit showing the location of each of the traffic signals. 
 

Should you have questions or require additional information regarding this matter, 
please let me know.   

 
 
Action Recommended 

 
This matter should be forwarded to the Planning and Public Works Committee of City 

Council for consideration.  Should PPW concur with Staff’s recommendation it should 
recommend approval of the attached ordinance authorizing an update to Title III, 
Schedule I of the City of Chesterfield Municipal Code.     

 

Please forward to PPW for review and recommendation
to full Council.

                                                2023-11-2

III.E.See Bill No. 3478



 
 
Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 
 

TO:  James A. Eckrich 
  Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

 
FROM: Jeff Paskiewicz, Senior Civil Engineer  
 
DATE: October 20, 2023 
  
RE:  New Traffic Control Signals 
  Wild Horse Creek Road and Chesterfield Parkway West 
 

 
As you are aware, the Wildhorse Village development completed the extension of 
Burkhardt Place from its previous terminus to Wild Horse Creek Road.  In addition, 

they also constructed new streets which connect to Wildhorse Creek Road and 
Chesterfield Parkway West.  As part of the roadway improvements new traffic control 

signals were installed at the following intersections: 

• Wild Horse Creek Road and Burkhardt Place 

• Wild Horse Creek Road and Parkview Terrace/Old Chesterfield Road 

• Wild Horse Creek Road and Lakeview Terrace/I-64 eastbound off-ramp 

• Chesterfield Parkway West and Burkhardt Place 

All four new traffic control signals are located on St. Louis County maintained 

roadways and will be maintained by St. Louis County.  The addition of these signals 
will require Title III, Schedule I of the ordinances of the City to be amended.  Attached 
is a draft ordinance which proposes this amendment and an exhibit depicting the 

locations of the new traffic control signals. 

It is my recommendation that the attached draft ordinance be sent to Planning and 

Public Works Committee and if they so recommend, forwarded to City Council for 
approval.  
 

 
CC: Zach Wolff, Assistant City Engineer 



BILL NO. ____________________ 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE III, SCHEDULE I OF THE ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD BY ADDING PROVISIONS THERETO TO INCLUDE 

ADDITIONAL ELECTRIC TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNALS 

 

WHEREAS, Wildhorse Village LP constructed roadway improvements associated with the 

Wildhorse Village development; and  

 

WHEREAS, the required roadway improvements included the installation of new traffic 

control signals. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CHESTERFIELD, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  Schedule I: Electric Traffic Control Signals of Title III of the Code of the City of 

Chesterfield is hereby amended by adding provisions thereto as follows: 

 

Table I-B Signals Maintained by County 

 

Wild Horse Creek Road and Burkhardt Place 

 

Wild Horse Creek Road and Parkview Terrace/Old Chesterfield Road 

 

Wild Horse Creek Road and I-64 eastbound off-ramp 

 

Wild Horse Creek Road and Lakeview Terrace/I-64 eastbound off-ramp 

 

Chesterfield Parkway West and Burkhardt Place 

 

Section 2.  In all other respects Title III remains in full force and effect. 

 

 

Passed and approved this _________ day of __________________, 2023. 

 

 

 

__________________________________  ________________________________ 

PRESIDING OFFICER    Bob Nation, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK 

 

FIRST READING HELD: 
____________________ 

3478



Wildhorse Village Traffic Control Signals

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri

Parcels

10/20/2023, 2:48:43 PM

0 0.15 0.30.07 mi

0 0.25 0.50.13 km

1:9,000

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri |

Jeff Paskiewicz
Oval

Jeff Paskiewicz
Oval

Jeff Paskiewicz
Oval

Jeff Paskiewicz
Oval

Jeff Paskiewicz
Callout
Wild Horse Creek Road and Burkhardt Place

Jeff Paskiewicz
Callout
Wild Horse Creek Road and Old Chesterfield Road/ Parkview Terrace

Jeff Paskiewicz
Callout
Wild Horse Creel Road and Lakeview Terrace/I-64 eastbound off-ramp

Jeff Paskiewicz
Callout
Chesterfield Parkway West and Burkhardt Place



1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 

Department of Public Works 
 

 

TO:  Michael O. Geisel, P.E. 
  City Administrator 

 
FROM: James A. Eckrich, P.E. 

  Public Works Director / City Engineer 
 

DATE: October 2, 2023 
  

RE: Snow Removal Recoupment Program for Private Streets 
  2024 Funding Authorization 
 

 
In accordance with Public Works Policy 21, the Chesterfield City Council should 

consider funding for the Snow Removal Recoupment Program for Private Streets 

(Program) during the 2023/2024 winter season.  This Program is submitted to the 
Planning and Public Works Committee (PPW Committee) each fall in order that a 

funding level can be set.  The amount recommended by the PPW Committee will be 

forwarded to City Council, who can then approve a corresponding transfer to the 
2024 Budget from General Fund – Fund Reserves (above the 40% Policy).    

 

The current Program is detailed in Public Works Policy 21 (most recent revision 
approved March 30, 2017), which dictates that non-gated private subdivisions can 

recoup costs for eligible snow removal expenses (street only) up to $4,500 per 

centerline mile, or $40 per residential unit, whichever is greater.  Further, the Policy 

provides that during a “severe season”, defined as a season during which the City of 
Chesterfield receives thirty or more inches of snow, City Council will consider 
supplemental funding to allow reimbursements at the 80th percentile.   

 
There are currently 51 subdivisions which participate in the Program.  During a 

regular snow season (not “severe” by definition) the City’s maximum financial 

obligation to these subdivisions is $164,871.  Accordingly, it is my recommendation 
that the City of Chesterfield City Council authorize a 2024 transfer from the General 

Fund – Fund Reserves to Account 001-072-5254 in the amount of $164,871.  The 

actual expenditure reimbursed to the subdivisions will be determined in the spring of 

2024, after receipt of all of the reimbursement requests. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

III.F.



2 | P a g e  

 

 
 

Action Recommended 

 
The Planning and Public Works Committee should consider funding the Snow 

Removal Recoupment Program for Private Streets for the 2023/2024 winter season.  

Should the Committee concur with Staff’s recommendation, it should vote to 

recommend a 2024 budget transfer from the General Fund – Fund Reserves to 
Account 001-072-5254 in the amount of $164,871.  If approved, the matter will then 

be forwarded to the full City Council for approval.   

 
Once approved, notice of the Program funding will be provided to eligible private 

subdivisions.  Should you have questions or require additional information, please let 

me know.   

Please forward to the PPW Committee for review
and recommendation for budgetary funding and
fund transfer

                                                 2023-11-2







 

1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 

Department of Public Works 
 

TO:  Michael O. Geisel, PE 

  City Administrator 
 

cc:  James A. Eckrich, PE 
Director of Public Works / City Engineer 

 

Justin Wyse, AICP, PTP 

Director of Planning 
 

FROM: Zachary S. Wolff, PE 

Assistant City Engineer 
 

DATE: November 7, 2023 
  

RE:  Public Street Acceptance  

Fienup Farms – Plats 1 and 3 

 

 
Public Works staff recently conducted an inspection of Plats 1 and 3 of the Fienup Farms 
subdivision.  As part of the inspection, we have determined that the following streets meet 
the City of Chesterfield’s design and construction standards for acceptance as public streets:   
 

 
(1) Harvester Drive (Plat 1): Approximately 1,037 feet; from Wild Horse 

Creek Road to Pine Summit Dr. / Fienup Lake 
Drive 

 Book 367 Pages 125-130 
 
(2) Pine Summit Drive (Plat 1): Approximately 899 feet; from Fienup Farms 

Boulevard to Harvester Drive 
 Book 367 Pages 125-130 
 
(3) Fienup Lake Drive (Plat 1): Approximately 951 feet; from Harvester Drive 

to 645 feet south of Patchwork Fields 

 Book 367 Pages 125-130 
 
(4) Deer Antler Court (Plat 1): Approximately 310 feet; from Fienup Lake 

Drive to the cul-de-sac of Deer Antler Court 
Book 367 Pages 125-130 

 
(5) Patchwork Fields (Plat 1): Approximately 40 feet; from Fienup Lake Drive 

to 40 feet north of Fienup Lake Drive 
 Book 367 Pages 125-130 
 
(6) Fienup Farms Boulevard (Plat 3): Approximately 2,037 feet; from Wild Horse 

Creek Road to and including the round-a bout  
 Book 367 Pages 134-140 
 

 

III.G.See Bill No. 3479



 

2 | P a g e  

 

A draft ordinance and a map showing the locations of the above referenced streets and the 
associated record plat exhibits are attached.  Please note that this is the fourth of multiple 
street acceptance recommendations required for Fienup Farms.  The Fienup Farms 
subdivision includes 11 plats.  All streets in Fienup Farms have been completed and are in 
use.  At this time only Plats 4 and 10 remain to be accepted.   

 
Action Recommended 
 
I recommend forwarding the acceptance of the above-referenced streets and associated 
sidewalks to the Planning and Public Works Committee for its consideration. If the Planning 
and Public Works Committee recommends approval, the matter should be forwarded to City 
Council for consideration.   
 
 



BILL NO. ____________________ 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 

AN ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO THE ACCEPTANCE OF HARVESTER DRIVE, PINE 

SUMMIT DRIVE, DEER ANTLER COURT, FIENUP FARMS BOULEVARD, AND 

PORTIONS OF FIENUP LAKE DRIVE AND PATCHWORK FIELDS IN FIENUP FARMS 

AS PUBLIC STREETS IN THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield has approved the construction of Fienup Farms; and 

 

WHEREAS, the streets in Fienup Farms were intended to be public streets and were 

therefore constructed to the design standards of the Department of Public Works of the City of 

Chesterfield; and  

 

WHEREAS, McBride Fienup Farms LLC and Wild Horse Residential LLC have completed 

required street improvements in Plats 1 and 3 of Fienup Farms. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CHESTERFIELD, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The following streets are hereby accepted by the City of Chesterfield for future care 

and maintenance: 

 

(1) Harvester Drive:   Approximately 1,037 feet; from Wild Horse Creek 

Road to Pine Summit Dr. / Fienup Lake Drive 

     Book 367 Pages 125-130 

 

(2) Pine Summit Drive:  Approximately 899 feet; from Fienup Farms 

Boulevard to Harvester Drive 

     Book 367 Pages 125-130 

 

(3) Fienup Lake Drive:  Approximately 951 feet; from Harvester Drive to 645 

feet south of Patchwork Fields 

     Book 367 Pages 125-130 

 

(4) Deer Antler Court:   Approximately 310 feet; from Fienup Lake Drive to 

the cul-de-sac of Deer Antler Court  

Book 367 Pages 125-130 

 

(5) Patchwork Fields:   Approximately 40 feet; from Fienup Lake Drive to 40 

feet north of Fienup Lake Drive 

     Book 367 Pages 125-130 

 

(6) Fienup Farms Boulevard:  Approximately 2,037 feet; from Wild Horse Creek 

Road to and including the round-a bout  

     Book 367 Pages 134-140 

 

Section 2.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

 

3479



Passed and approved this _________ day of __________________, 2024. 

 

 

 

__________________________________  ________________________________ 

PRESIDING OFFICER     MAYOR 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

FIRST READING HELD: 

____________________ 



Fienup Farms Public Street Acceptance

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri

Parcels
Preliminary Parcels

12/28/2021, 11:47:50 AM
0 0.15 0.30.075 mi

0 0.25 0.50.125 km

1:6,350

Esri., Inc., City of Chesterfield, Missouri | 
 

Zachary Wolff
Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Line

Zachary Wolff
Typewriter
Previously Accepted Streets

Zachary Wolff
Line

Zachary Wolff
Typewriter
Streets Recommended for Acceptance

Zachary Wolff
Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Callout
Fienup Lake Drive Plat 1

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Callout
Harvester Drive Plat 1

Zachary Wolff
Callout
Deer Antler CourtPlat 1

Zachary Wolff
Callout
Pine Summit Drive Plat 1

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Polygon Line

Zachary Wolff
Callout
Fienup Farms Blvd Plat 3

Zachary Wolff
Arrow

Zachary Wolff
Callout
Patchwork Fields Plat 1





























FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

Chair:  Councilmember Michael Moore 
Vice-Chair:  Barbara McGuinness 

 
There are no Finance and Administrative Committee action items scheduled for 
Monday’s meeting. 

 
 
NEXT MEETING 

 
The next meeting of the F&A Committee has not yet been scheduled.  

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Finance 
Director Jeannette Kelly or me prior to Monday’s meeting.   

 
 

 



PARKS, RECREATION AND ARTS COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Mary Monachella 
Vice Chair:  Councilmember Gary Budoor 

 
River’s Edge Park Bike Trails Proposal – Recommendation to authorize Gateway 
Off-Road Cyclists (GORC) to build and maintain bike trails at River’s Edge Park. 

Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee recommends approval. 
 

Chesterfield Family Aquatic Center (CFAC) 2024 Recommendations – 
Recommendation to reduce pool hours of operation during the last three weeks of 
the 2024 season and increase daily non-resident admission fee by $2.00. Parks, 

Recreation and Arts Committee recommends approval. 
 

Cricket Consideration – Recommendation to develop and authorize a two-year 
license agreement with a Chesterfield Cricket advocacy group allowing them to fund, 
operate and maintain Cricket facilities on roughly four acres of CVAC park property. 

Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee recommends approval. 
 

Chesterfield Parkway Holiday Banners – Recommendation to approve the use of 

existing budgeted PRA FY2023 funds to install holiday banners on the light poles 
along Chesterfield Parkway West. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee 

recommends approval. 
 
Miracle Field Renovations – Recommendation to accept the Municipal Parks Grant 

in Round 24 for Miracle Field and playground renovations at CVAC and to amend 
the FY2024 budget to include revenues and expenditures relative to the project, and 

to authorize the City Administrator to execute the grant agreement. Parks, 
Recreation and Arts Committee recommends approval. 
 

Central Park Public Art Sculpture – Recommendation to approve the privately 
funded public art proposal submitted by Rob Kilo for a wooden sculpture to be 
located at Central Park subject to positive core samples of the existing tree and a 

signed agreement with the donor. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee 
recommends approval. 

 
 
NEXT MEETING 

 
The next meeting of the Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee has not yet been 
scheduled.  

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Parks, 

Recreation and Arts Director TW Dieckmann or me prior to Monday’s meeting. 
 
 



 
 

Memorandum 

 
To:  Mike Geisel 

  City Administrator 
   

From: TW Dieckmann, CPRE 
  Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts 
 

Date:  11/7/2023 

Re:   bike trails proposal – River’s Edge Park 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

At the November 1, 2023 Parks, Recreation and Arts (PRA) Committee of Council meeting, there was a discussion about 

adding bicycle/pedestrian dirt trails in the woodlands of River’s Edge Park.  Gateway Off-Road Cyclists (GORC) made the 

presentation based on the attached proposal.  Trails are consistently one of the top amenities our residents request, 

including in our 2019 Parks Master Plan.  It was approved by 4-0 vote (see draft minutes results attached). 

We now seek City Council approval for the trail proposal.  The trails would be built and maintained by an established 

network of GORC volunteers, at no cost to the city.  No additional funding is requested.  Please let me know if you have 

questions.  Thank you for your consideration. 



 

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists, Revision - (Fall 2023) 1

 

 
 

 
 
 

Trail Proposal 
River’s Edge Park – City of Chesterfield: 
Mountain Bike Trails  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Presented by:  The Gateway Off‐Road Cyclists



 

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists, Revision - (Fall 2023) 2

 

OVERVIEW 
The Gateway Off‐Road Cyclists (GORC), a 501(c) 3 non‐profit 
corporation dedicated to advocacy, design, construction and 
maintenance of mountain bike trails proposes to add 
mountain bike natural surface trails to River’s Edge Park in 
Chesterfield, MO.  The trail system would include one, loop 
trail encircling the existing lake and gravel paths.  This trail 
would capitalize on the growing demand in the Midwest 
region for trails that are optimized for mountain biking, hiking 
& trail running.  It will also enhance the recreational 
opportunities provided by the City of Chesterfield by adding 
bike optimized off‐road trails for all ages and abilities. 
 

BENEFITS 
 Establish River’s Edge Park as a Destination for Area 

Mountain Biking, with Connection to Other Area 
Trails. 

 Utilize the Infrastructure Already in Place like Parking, 
and Gravel Trails  

 Increase the Number of Park Visitors 

 Promote Active and Healthy Lifestyles 

 Create a Cross‐Generational Activity that Provides 
Shared Family Activity 

 Encourage Volunteerism 

 Increased Local Property Values 

 Creates Mountain Bike Tourism as a Sustainable, 
Renewable Source of Economic Development to the 
St. Louis Region 

 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
The goal of this project is to develop a trail network that 
offers the beginner mountain biker purpose built trails.  The 
plan has been crafted with the idea of developing a bike‐
specific trail in addition to the gravel and mulched trails that 
already exist.  The trails will be designed and built in a 
sustainable manner, and meet conservation, education and 
recreation objectives.  These characteristics will appeal to a 
broad cross‐section of off‐road bicyclists. 

ECONOMIC BENEFITS 
QUICK FACTS 

 
According  to  the  Outdoor 
Industry  Alliance  (OIA), 
mountain  bicyclists  represent 
approximately  3.4%  of  the US 
population,  or  nearly  10.6 
million  participants.  IMBA’s 
own  research  indicates  that 
enthusiasts,  who  represent  a 
portion of this overall number, 
travel  extensively  within  a 
four‐hour  range  and  will 
typically devote one week per 
year  specifically  to  travel  to 
reach  mountain  bicycling 
destinations. Same‐day visitors 
spend  approximately  $35  per 
day in local communities while 
destination  visitors  spend 
closer to $193 per day  (due  in 
part  to  lodging  and  increased 
meal purchases). 
 
A 2018 economic impact study 
released by the Walton Family 
Foundation describes  in detail 
the  $137 million  benefit  from 
Northwest  Arkansas  to  the 
Arkansas economy  in 2017, of 
which  that  $27  million  came 
from tourism 
 
OAI  also  suggests  that  60 
million  adult Americans  ride  a 
bike  each  year,  and  bicycling 
creates  major  economic 
growth in the United States: 
•  Contributes  $133  billion 
annual contribution to the U.S. 
economy 
•  Supports  nearly  1.1  million 
jobs across the U.S. 
•  Produces  $53.1  billion 
annually  in  retail  sales  and 
services 
• $6.2 billion  in bicycling  gear 
sales and services 
• $46.9 billion in bicycling trip‐
related expenditures 
•  Generates  $17.7  billion 
inannual  federal  and  state  tax 
revenue 
•  Provides  sustainable  growth 
in rural communities 

ECONOMIC BENEFITS 
QUICK FACTS 

 
According  to  the  Outdoor 
Industry  Alliance  (OIA), 
mountain  bicyclists  represent 
approximately  3.4%  of  the US 
population,  or  nearly  10.6 
million  participants.  IMBA’s 
own  research  indicates  that 
enthusiasts,  who  represent  a 
portion of this overall number, 
travel  extensively  within  a 
four‐hour  range  and  will 
typically devote one week per 
year  specifically  to  travel  to 
reach  mountain  bicycling 
destinations. Same‐day visitors 
spend  approximately  $35  per 
day in local communities while 
destination  visitors  spend 
closer to $193 per day  (due  in 
part  to  lodging  and  increased 
meal purchases). 
 
A 2018 economic impact study 
released by the Walton Family 
Foundation describes  in detail 
the  $137 million  benefit  from 
Northwest  Arkansas  to  the 
Arkansas economy  in 2017, of 
which  that  $27  million  came 
from tourism 
 
OAI  also  suggests  that  60 
million  adult Americans  ride  a 
bike  each  year,  and  bicycling 
creates  major  economic 
growth in the United States: 
•  Contributes  $133  billion 
annual contribution to the U.S. 
economy 
•  Supports  nearly  1.1  million 
jobs across the U.S. 
•  Produces  $53.1  billion 
annually  in  retail  sales  and 
services 
• $6.2 billion  in bicycling  gear 
sales and services 
• $46.9 billion in bicycling trip‐
related expenditures 
•  Generates  $17.7  billion 
inannual  federal  and  state  tax 
revenue 
•  Provides  sustainable  growth 
in rural communities 



 

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists, Revision - (Fall 2023) 3

 
PROJECT DETAIL 
The proposed mountain bike trail will provide a new and unique experience to River’s Edge Park 
and will establish the City of Chesterfield as a leader in outdoor recreational opportunities.  This 
trail would include rollers and grade reversals to create a “rhythm” where mountain bikers can 
enjoy a flow and build their riding skills.  Other communities have embraced trails that are 
specifically built for mountain bikes with these progressive features for not only the enjoyment 
but the sustainability due to superior water control.  The proposed trail would include these 
features, yet be safe for all skill levels.  (See the attached drawings, general trail planning and 
design guidelines and trail feature description document for more detailed information) 
 
After approval, GORC’s plan would be to construct this trail in a phased approach. 
 
PHASE 1:  Construction of a 1.0 mile two‐way mountain bike and hiking trail on the West side of 
the Park. 

 Features:  Single‐track, natural surface, rolling, average 2‐5% grade trail designed to 
provide a cross‐country trail experience without steep climbs or descents using natural 
contours as much as possible to get out of low areas. 

 Bordered by the Entrance Gravel Trail, West Park Boundary, and the North/South Levee. 

 Ability Level:  Beginner (Green), 2‐3 feet wide, dual direction. 

 Construction Timeline:  2 months 

 Cost:  $5,280 In‐kind donation by volunteers.  (~$10/Linear Foot) 
PHASE 2:  Construction of a 0.8 mile two‐way mountain bike and hiking trail along the North 
and East side of the Park. 

 Features:  Single‐track, natural surface, rolling, average 2‐5% grade trail designed to 
provide a cross‐country trail experience without steep climbs or descents using natural 
contours as much as possible to get out of low areas. 

 Ability Level:  Beginner (Green), 2‐3 Feet wide, dual direction. 

 Construction Timeline:  2 months 

 Cost:  $4,344 In‐kind donation by volunteers.  (~$10/Linear Foot) 
PHASE 3:  Construction of a 0.6 mile two‐way mountain bike and hiking trail along the South 
side of the Park. 

 Features:  Single‐track, natural surface, rolling, average 2‐5% grade trail designed to 
provide a cross‐country trail experience without steep climbs or descents using natural 
contours as much as possible to get out of low areas. 

 Labeled as Skills Area on the proposed trail concept drawing. 

 Ability Level:  Beginner (Green)/Intermediate (Blue), 2‐3 Feet wide, dual direction. 

 Timeline:  1 month 

 Cost:  $3,269 In‐Kind donation by volunteers.  (~10/Linear Foot) 



 

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists, Revision - (Fall 2023) 4

 
(Note:  Trails are designed to “flow” through the woods using the natural features available.  
The trail will weave around existing trees causing minimal impact to the natural landscape.  If 
live trees need to be removed, they are limited to those under 2”‐4” in diameter.) 

 
PROJECT COST 
Total project In‐kind donation is approximately $12,893.  Total cost to the City of Chesterfield is 
zero.  GORC is committed to providing all volunteer labor to build these trails and seeking the 
donation of any materials required.   
 

MAINTENANCE 
Upon completion, at least one GORC Trail Steward would be assigned to River’s Edge Park.  The 
Trail Stewards job is to schedule and organize maintenance.  They would work directly with the 
Park staff to make sure the trails are being maintained properly by volunteers. 
 
Typical maintenance could include: 

 Tread Repair – repairing damage that may have occurred due to heavy rains, fallen trees 
and/or improper use during poor trail conditions. 

 Deberming – as trails compact causing a trough, some deberming may be required to 
eliminate potential water erosion issues. 

 Clearing Drainages – as leaves fall, they need to be removed from drainages to aid in 
water removal from the trail tread. 

 Clearing Trail Corridor – lopping of trees and saplings is required to maintain the proper 
width of the trail corridor. 

 Sawyer – downed trees must be removed from the trail surface to eliminate the 
possibility of ride arounds or dangerous conditions.  GORC has trained USFS sawyers and 
are willing to remove downed trees only upon approval by park land managers. 

  
These additional services would be provided at no cost to the City of Chesterfield. 



GORC

RIVER'S EDGE PARK 

TRAIL 1
LENGTH:  ~13,200 FT. (2.50 MILES)
AVERAGE GRADE:  0-2%

CONCEPTUAL PLAN

LAKE

TRAIL 1

TRAIL HEAD FUTURE EXPANSION

FUTURE EXPANSION

TRAIL HEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEXT ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANGULAR %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 PLACE DECIMAL %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 PLACE DECIMAL %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRACTIONAL      %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTOLERANCES ARE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIMENSIONS ARE IN INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UUNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSS REF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EWO

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE BEND RADII = 1 METAL THICKNESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gateway Off-Road Cyclists

AutoCAD SHX Text
GORC ORDER NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUSTOMER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB/LOCATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DRAWING CERTIFIED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8

AutoCAD SHX Text
.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
.030

AutoCAD SHX Text
NONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAIL PROPOSAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
XC TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVERS EDGE PARK - CHESTERFIELD MO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
REP-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
REP-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVERS EDGE PARK - PROPOSAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIELD, MO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIED PARKS AND RECREATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISSOURI

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



GENERAL TRAIL PLANNING AND DESIGN GUIDELINES 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 1

 
GENERAL TRAIL PLANNING AND DESIGN GUIDELINES 
The following are guidelines for the construction and maintenance of future trails. The natural environment is 
dynamic and unpredictable. The nature of recreational trails and roads, the desired user experience, and the 
constant forces acting on natural surface trails and roads make strict standards untenable and undesirable. As 
such, the guidelines below are simply that: best management practices that should be followed within 
environmental constraints. 
 
Stacked Loops 
Stacked loops enable users to share many different levels of trail. In a stacked‐loop system, the loops that are 
closest to the trailheads are more inviting to new users, beginners, or families. This allows users of all levels to 
enjoy the park and improve their fitness and skill while enjoying the natural world. 
 
Bi‐directional loops offer a trail experience that can be ridden in either direction, thereby essentially doubling the 
trail options and allowing users to complete a loop and avoid an “out and back.” These new loops will vastly 
increase the trail opportunities for beginner to expert mountain bikers, including families and groups. 
 
Progressive Hubs and Clusters 
All shared‐use trails are to be created with skill level progression in mind. With progressive trail features, a 
mountain biker may become a better rider by gradually moving up in trail difficulty. It is proposed that this trail 
system offer features of varying skill levels so that riders may find a trail that meet their skills and progress 
accordingly. 
 
Hubs and clusters give the users more trail options for varying skill levels at each hub, allowing for progressive skill 
level diversity. A trailhead or major trail intersection is usually a hub. A rider may start out on a beginner trail and 
then graduate on to a more difficult trail at the next hub. At many intersections, there is the option to change the 
trail difficulty, or continue on the same difficulty level trail.   
 
This practice spreads out visitation and helps reduce trail user conflict. Signage includes difficulty scales at every 
hub, and wherever necessary in the trail system, to inform users of which type of trail to choose based on their 
skill levels and desired experience. A “cluster” is a concentration of trails with all levels of difficulty. 
 
A design priority is to provide consistent climbs and extended descents. In most cases the trails contour gently up 
or down for consistent lengths to maximize climbs and descents, known as rolling contour design. All shared use 
trails should be of rolling contour design to minimize impact and sedimentation in the watershed. 
 
The most challenging trail and terrain will be further away from the proposed parking hubs, rewarding those 
willing to travel longer distances. This is also a proven risk management tool. Putting the difficult segments further 
out of reach of beginners, and giving riders time and distance to warm up before reaching those technical 
segments, provides a level of safety in the system. 
 
Trailheads 
Well‐placed trailheads and parking lots contribute to a successful trail system. Trailheads should be located in 
areas of lower elevation, as most trail users prefer outbound climbs with inbound descents back to the parking 
area. This also helps mitigate risk by allowing fatigued riders an easier route back to their starting point. This is 
especially true for mountain bikers, and necessary for families and beginners.  Mountain bikers prefer to exert 
themselves the fullest on the first half of an outing, and enjoy a descent back to their vehicle on the second half.  
Trailheads should offer information useful for the trail users, including trail maps, location information, emergency 
contact details, and volunteer information. 
 
 



GENERAL TRAIL PLANNING AND DESIGN GUIDELINES 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 2

 
Develop Sustainable Trails 
A sustainable trail balances many elements. It has little impact on the environment, resists erosion through proper 
design, construction, and maintenance, and blends with the surrounding area. A sustainable trail also appeals to 
and serves a variety of users, adding an important element of recreation to the community. It is designed to 
provide enjoyable and challenging experiences for visitors by managing their expectations and their use effectively. 
Following sustainable trail design and construction guidelines allows for high‐quality trail and education 
experiences for users while protecting the land’s sensitive resources. For additional trail design, construction, and 
maintenance techniques, refer to Trail Solutions: IMBA’s Guide to Building Sweet Singletrack. These guidelines are 
appropriate for any hike, bike, or equestrian trail. 
 
Trail Design and Sustainability 
The specific alignment of a trail tread should be built to accommodate mountain bicyclists, as this user group 
obtains speeds greater than a hiker or runner. Comprehensive trail design, construction guidance, and bike park 
planning can be found in Trail Solutions: IMBA’s Guide to Building Sweet Singletrack, Managing Mountain Biking: 
IMBA’s Guide to Providing Great Riding, and Bike Parks: IMBA’s Guide to New School Trails, all published by IMBA. 
Another recently published resource is Guidelines for a Quality Trail Experience, jointly authored by IMBA and the 
Bureau of Land Management (BLM). 
 
The following excerpts outline some basic trail design sustainability guidelines as described in the above‐
mentioned books. 
 
A trail’s location, alignment, grades, and soil texture are some of the most critical factors affecting design. One of 
the most sustainable trail designs is the “rolling contour trail,” characterized by a sidehill location, a gentle trail 
grade (<10% average), grade reversals, and an outsloped tread. A sustainable trail sheds water off of the trail while 
keeping users on the trail. When applied collectively, the nine principles below create trails that are low 
maintenance, fun to use, while helping to manage risk, environmental impact, and user conflict. 
 

 The best location for trails is on sidehills, as opposed to flatter terrain like ridge tops, meadows, or valley 
floors. 

 Trails should gently traverse the slope, rather than traveling directly up or down it. Trails that directly 
ascend/descend the hillside are known as fall line trails. 

 To ensure a stable alignment, a trail’s grade should never exceed half the grade of the sidehill it is located 
on. 

 The average slope of the trail should generally average no more than 10%. 

 Typically, the maximum sustainable trail grade for short (<50 feet) distances is 15%. Grades can be as low 
as 3% or 4%, or as high as 25% depending on various factors. 

 A grade reversal is a location at which a trail briefly changes elevation, dropping subtly before rising again. 
This change in grade encourages water to run off the trail at the low point of the grade reversal. 

 The downhill or outer edge of the trail tread should be slightly lower than the inside edge. This is called 
outslope, and it encourages water to sheet across and off the trail in a gentle, non‐erosive manner instead 
of funneling down the trail’s center. Most trail should be built with a 5% outslope. 

 Some soils are durable and drain well while others are fragile, and erode quickly. Trail design and 
maintenance should be adjusted to site specific soil types. 

 Proper trail design with gentle grades and sidehill location can minimize soil displacement. In areas with 
loose soils or high traffic, consistent flow, insloped turns, and tread hardening are also frequently 
necessary. 

 
 
 
 



GENERAL TRAIL PLANNING AND DESIGN GUIDELINES 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 3

 
Trail “Flow” 
With good flow, the speed at which a rider travels on the trail should be fairly consistent, and the rider will not 
have to brake and accelerate frequently. Transitions between faster and slower speeds need to be gradual, with 
progressively increasing and decreasing turn radii and frequent uphill segments to reduce speed where needed. 
Steep downhill grades should not come right before tight turns. Adjusting the cross slope of the trail tread to 
match the flow also helps riders stay on the trail and allows higher speeds. Designing trails with flow in mind not 
only provides a high quality trail experience, it helps mitigate erosion issues from runoff and use. 
 
Signage 
The development of a mountain bike trail network requires a comprehensive system of signs. Signs are the most 
important communication tool between land managers and trail users. A well‐implemented and maintained 
signage system enhances the user experience, helps visitors navigate the trail network, and provides information 
about the area. Signage also plays a critical role in managing risk and deploying emergency services. 
 
Recommended signage for the trails should be simple, uncluttered and obvious; with a sign at every major 
intersection to help users stay on track. Signs should meet the needs of all users, from the daily trail user to 
someone who is experiencing the trails for the first time. In order to serve the variety of visitors, sign placement 
should be strategic and frequent. Because signs can intrude on the natural outdoor experience, balancing 
competing interests is key to developing a successful signage program. 
 
A variety of signs can be created to help users identify trails and their location, select routes, remain confident in 
their trail choices, guide users to destinations and key points of interest, and provide information on regulations 
and allowed uses. Signage can also be interpretative; helping visitors learn about responsible recreation and trail 
etiquette, learn about resource protection, and reduce risk and hazards. 
 

 Directional signs provide navigational information. 

 Informational signs, usually positioned at the trailhead and major intersections, provide details such as 
trail length and difficulty. These include trailhead identification signs (from a road), signs at a trailhead 
kiosk (with a complete map and description of all the nearby trails and facilities, local regulations, 
emergency contact information, and educational messages), trail intersection signs, waymarks, difficulty 
rating signs, and trail length or elevation gain/loss signs. 

 Regulatory signs delineate rules, such as prohibited activities, direction of travel, or other restrictions. 

 Warning signs are used to caution trail users of upcoming hazards or risks. These include visitor rules and 
regulations signs, allowed activities, road/trail intersections, and emergency signs. 

 Educational signs provide guidelines for responsible recreation and trail etiquette. 

 Interpretive signs describe natural or cultural resources. These include education/responsible use signs, 
and interpretive signs. 

 
Design Flagging 
It is optimal to flag the corridors just before the permitting review team is available to physically tour the flag‐line, 
so as not to lose flags from sunlight, wind, animal, human, and natural elements. Design and flagging costs will 
depend on conditions, accessibility, terrain, time of year, and other factors.  
 
Construction 
Creating the proposed trail network of traditional singletrack trails and mountain bike optimized trails, will 
guarantee a unique destination, drawing riders from afar while giving local families and residents an exhilarating 
outdoor activity close to home. Construction should be provided by a combination of skilled experience builders, 
especially for the mountain bike optimized trails, and a hybrid construction plan with volunteers providing much of 
the preparation and finishing work between machine operators.  A phased plan of action will ensure continued  
 



GENERAL TRAIL PLANNING AND DESIGN GUIDELINES 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 4

 
enthusiasm for the trails. Machines applicable to the landscape and style of trails include: mini‐excavators, mini‐
skid steers, tracked haulers and plate compactors.  
 
When constructing trails, follow these guidelines: 
 
Do not exceed the Half Rule — A trail’s grade shouldn't exceed half the grade of the hillside or sideslope that the 
trail traverses. If the grade does exceed half the sideslope, it is considered a fall‐line trail. Water will flow down a 
fall‐line trail rather than run across it. Measure the sideslope with a clinometer, then be sure to keep the tread 
grade below half of that figure in order to ensure good drainage. For example, if you're building across a hillside 
with a sideslope of 20 percent, the trail‐tread grade should not exceed 10 percent. There is an upper limit to this 
half rule: You must also apply knowledge about maximum sustainable grades. Very steep trails will erode even if 
their grade meets the half rule. For example, a trail with a grade of 24 percent that traverses a steep, 50‐percent 
sideslope will be unsustainable even though it complies with the half rule. 
 
Follow the Ten Percent Average Guideline — Generally, an average trail grade of 10 percent or less is most 
sustainable, average trail grade is the slope of the trail from one end to the other. Many trails will have short 
sections steeper than 10 percent, and some unique situations will allow average trail grades of more than 10 
percent. A trail’s average grade is calculated by dividing total elevation gain by total length, multiplied by 100 to 
convert to percent. 
 
Do not exceed the Maximum Sustainable Grade — Maximum sustainable trail grade is typically about 15 percent; 
it is site‐specific and fluctuates slightly based on several factors. The variables to be considered when setting your 
target maximum trail grade include: 
 

Half Rule ‐ Soil Type – Rock ‐ Annual Rainfall Amount ‐ Grade Reversals ‐ Type of Users ‐ Number of Users – 
Difficulty Level 

 
Construct Grade Reversals — A grade reversal is just what it sounds like—a spot at which a climbing trail levels out 
and then changes direction, dropping subtly for 3 to 15 linear meters before rising again. This change in grade 
forces water to exit the trail at the low point of the grade reversal, before it can gain more volume, momentum, 
and erosive power. Grade reversals are known by several different terms, including grade dip, grade brake, 
drainage dip, and rolling dip. 
 
Construct trails that Outslope about 5% — As the trail contours across a hillside, the downhill or outer edge of the 
tread should tilt slightly down and away from the high side. This tilt is called outslope, and it encourages water to 
sheet across and off the trail instead of funneling down its center. Outslope is one reason why contour trails last 
for years and years. IMBA recommends that all trail treads be built with a 5‐percent outslope. 
 
Avoid The Fall Line — Fall‐line trails usually follow the shortest route down a hill, the same path that water 
follows. The problem with fallline trails is that they focus water down their length. The accelerating water strips 
the trail of soil, exposing roots, creating gullies, and scarring the environment. 
 
Avoid Flat Areas — Flat terrain lures many trail builders with the initial ease of trail construction. However, if a trail 
is not located on a slope, it will become a muddy wet basin full of water. The trail tread must always be slightly 
higher than the ground on at least one side of it so that water can drain off properly. 
 
 
 



5673 Wrenwyck Place, Weldon Spring, MO 63304 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 1

 

 
 
 
 

MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAIL FEATURES



5673 Wrenwyck Place, Weldon Spring, MO 63304 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 2

 
Table of Contents 

Feature – Berms ................................................................................................... 3 
Feature – Rollers ................................................................................................... 4 
Feature – Jumps ................................................................................................... 5 
Feature – Tabletops .............................................................................................. 6 
Feature – Roller Double ........................................................................................ 7 
Feature – Grade Reversal ..................................................................................... 8 
Feature – Pump Track .......................................................................................... 9 
Feature – Kid’s/Family/Stryder Trail .................................................................... 10 
 

   



5673 Wrenwyck Place, Weldon Spring, MO 63304 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 3

 
MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAIL FEATURE – Berms 
 
 
 

 
 

DESCRIPTION 
A berm is a banked and curved cornering feature on a trail that provides support for the 
rider when turning a corner allowing them to turn  in a smooth manner.   A berm allows 
the user to maintain speed while cornering.   The features are usually  located on flat or 
downhill section of trail.  A beginner graded berm will be generally open and shallow with 
more difficult berms encompassing tighter angles, steeper surfaces and higher entrance 
speeds.   The speed at which a berm  is ridden  increases with rider skill and experience.  
Berms may  also  be  used  as  trail  feature  in  themselves, with  a  series  of  berms  on  a 
descent being a typical feature of modern bike trails. 
 
DESIGN COMMENTS 
It  is  important to ensure that a berm  is continued around a bend to a point where the 
rider is able to exit safely on the line of the trail.  Riding the feature during construction 
will indicate the correct exit point much better than design sketches.  The trail formation 
specification needs  increasing for berms that are to be ridden at higher speeds or  is on 
steep gradients. 
 
CONTRUCTION METHODOLOGY 
Berms are  created by either  constructing a bank  from earth or  stone or  identifying an 

existing  bank/gradient  that  has  suitable  properties  for  the  trail.    A  basic  20‐45°  bank 
should be formed  in a rough semicircle of 8‐10’ radius with an  inverted dished face and 
suitable turning angle for the grade of trail.   A trail compactor may be used to compact 
the earth or stone into the face of the berm, which should appear sealed when finished 
with no loose stone.  An appropriate drainage area on the inside of the berm should be 
excavated to ensure water is shed successfully off the surface. 
 
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS  CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY 
Local earth/soil      Hand Tools 
Local stone      Dumper 
        Mini‐Skid Steer 
        Compactor 



5673 Wrenwyck Place, Weldon Spring, MO 63304 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 4

 
MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAIL FEATURE – Rollers 
DESCRIPTION 
A roller is a trail feature where the trail surface rises then falls smoothly, 
which should be ridable without pedaling.  As the name suggests, rollers 
are  designed  to  be  rolled  over.    Skillful  riders  can  use  rollers  to  gain 
speed  and  control  by  ‘pumping’  them.    Rollers  can  occur  on  the  trail 
singularly,  or  in  series,  depending  on  the  grade  of  the  trail.    On 
intermediate grade  trails,  rollers should generally be singular, although 
multiple rollers could be used if there is a minimum of a bike length (~6’) 
gap between them.  Advanced grade rollers can occur in succession and 
are  steeper,  taller  and  spaced  closer  than  intermediate  grade.   Expert 
grade  rollers  should  be  technically  challenging  to  ride,  due  their 
steepness and height.  In some cases, riders can jump from one roller to 
another. 
 
CONSTRUCTION METHODOLOGY 
Rollers  can  be  constructed  from  material  on  site  or  from  imported 
material from local sources.  Rollers can be built up on flat terrain, or use 
naturally  occurring  features.    If  built  on  flat  terrain,  a  roller  can  be 
expected to use typically ½ ton of sub base.  Machinery should be used 
to  import  and manipulate material  into  the  appropriate  spacing  and 
heights.    The  shape  of  the  rollers  should  then  be  refined  using  hand 
tools.  The trail surface should be built according to specifications. 
 
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS  CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY 
Local earth/soil      Hand Tools 
Local stone      Dumper 
        Mini‐Skid Steer 
        Compactor 



5673 Wrenwyck Place, Weldon Spring, MO 63304 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 5

 
MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAIL FEATURE – Jumps 
DESCRIPTION 
A  jump  is an exciting  trail  feature  allowing  riders  to  take off  from  the 
ground and  land safely using their momentum.   The  larger the feature, 
the more  severe  the grade of  jump.   The entrance  to and exit  from a 
ramp is usually long which provides a safe environment within which to 
gain momentum, undertake the feature and land safely.  Jumps may be 
constructed on all gradients, making them ideal trail features. 
 
DESIGN COMMENTS 
Poorly constructed jumps are dangerous.  Focus should be on creating 
entrance and exit to the feature which will enable users to take the jump 
at different speeds requiring different skill levels. 
 
CONSTRUCTION METHODOLOGY 
A machine should construct a solid ramp out of  local or  imported earth 
or  stone.    Dumpers may  import material  and  ramps may  be  shaped 
roughly by  the machine before being  finished by hand and compacted.  
Rocks  and  boulders may  be  installed  on  the  lip  of  the  ramp  to  allow 
users  to  drop  off  or  roll  out  of  the  jump  if  the  feature  is  not  to  be 
‘jumped’.    Slabs  or  extra  stone may  be  laid  on  the  feature  landing  to 
reduce  erosion  caused  by  landing  bikes.    The  route  corridor  at  the 
entrance and exit to the jump should have a good line of sight. 
 
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS  CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY 
Local earth/soil      Hand Tools 
Local stone      Dumper 
        Mini‐Skid Steer 
        Compactor 



5673 Wrenwyck Place, Weldon Spring, MO 63304 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 6

 
MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAIL FEATURE – Tabletop 
DESCRIPTION 
A tabletop  is a  jump feature allowing riders to experience  jumps with a 
gap between the take‐off and  landing  in a safe and controlled manner.  
The  feature  is  fundamentally  a  take  off  ramp  with  a  flat  top  and  a 
downslope.   The advantage of using this type of  jump  is that the gap  is 
not mandatory allowing a  rider  to  lump onto  the  flat  top of  the  jump, 
working their way up to  jumping to the downslope of the  landing.   The 
difference  in  tabletop design between moderate  and  severe  grades of 
trail is focused on the gradient encountered on the up and down slopes, 
the height of the ramp to be navigated and the overall length.  Tabletops 
can be constructed out of earth or stone material.    It should be noted 
that whilst tabletops allow riders of all abilities to attempt the jump, the 
lip of  the  take‐off  is  therefore more  susceptible  to erosion  than  jumps 
with mandatory gaps. 
 
DESIGN COMMENTS 
Dividing the entry route into two will provide opportunity to offer users 
different approach options to the same feature (e.g. steeper and 
cambered options for more difficult grades). 
 
CONSTRUCTION METHODOLOGY 
A  tabletop  feature  is usually  constructed  from  stone or earth  that has 
been  imported  from  appropriate  local  sources.   A machine  should  be 
used to form material into a flat topped mound of  
 
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS  CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY 
Local earth/soil      Hand Tools 
Local stone      Dumper 
        Mini‐Skid Steer 
        Compactor 



5673 Wrenwyck Place, Weldon Spring, MO 63304 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 7

DESCRIPTION 
A roller double is a manmade jump feature with a smooth, shallow bowl 
between the take‐off and  landing slopes.   This allows the feature to be 
rolled  over  providing  an  inclusive  feature  with  no  opt  out  route 
necessary.    The  difference  between  a moderate  (intermediate)  roller 
double  jump  and more  severe  grades  (advanced)  is  the  length, height 
and angle of transitions. 
 
DESIGN COMMENTS 
Roller double jumps are good for trails requiring features to be included 
for a variety of skilled users.   Less able users will be able to simply roll 
over the feature whereas better riders can perform a large jump. 
 
CONSTRUCTION METHODOLOGY 
A roller double  jump may be constructed from stone or earth found on 
site or which has been imported from appropriate sources.  An mini‐skid 
steer or excavator should be used to form local material into two ramps 

with a rollable center and side slope of no more than 45°.  A compactor 

should be used to compact the material at regular intervals to a required 
height.   A final stone or clay should be  installed  in a tray on the top of 
the ramps and compacted so that the surface appears sealed.  The entry 
on  the  first  ramp may  be  split  into  2  to  provide  different  angles  of 
approach.  The landing points on the downhill of the second ramp can be 
fortified with extra stone or clay and should be elongated  to provide a 
safe landing strip. 
 
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS  CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY 
Local earth/soil      Hand Tools 
Local stone      Dumper 
        Mini‐Skid Steer 

 
MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAIL FEATURE – Roller Double 



5673 Wrenwyck Place, Weldon Spring, MO 63304 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 8

DESCRIPTION 
Grade  reversals are a  feature  that  can be used when  traversing a  side 
slope where a full bench cut is required.   The feature helps to maintain 
trail flow, add interest, control speed and shed water at strategic points 
across a traverse, by using the undulating trail gradient.  The line of the 
trail can be descending, slightly ascending or flat.  The gradient of grade 
reversals  can vary hugely  in  length, height, and  frequency.   Riders  can 
gain  speed  by  pumping  the  down  sides  of  the  reversals  and  carry 
momentum up  the next  incline before  repeating.   Grade  reversals  are 
also very useful for managing runoff on the trail surface, as water can be 
shed quickly  from  the  troughs of  the grade  reversals.   This avoids high 
volumes  of  water  flowing  on  the  trail  surface  and  therefore  reduces 
erosion.   Grade reversals on a  true beginner  trail are generally smooth 
and  low  with  more  technical  grade  reversals  encompassing  shorter 
wavelengths, higher amplitudes and faster entrance speeds.  The speed 
at  which  grade  reversals  are  ridden,  increases  with  rider  skill  and 
experience.   For best practice,  the  trail gradient  should always be  less 
than half that of the side slope. 
 
DESIGN COMMENTS 
Routing the trail above large boulders and trees helps to provide natural 
demarcation and avoids undermining root systems. 
 
CONSTRUCTION METHODOLOGY 
Create a full bench cut (either by creating a platform with hand tools or a 
mini‐skid steer) and make sure the trail is constantly moving up or down.  
It  is  important to ensure that water can exit on the grade dips.   A ditch 
and/or  a  culvert  may  be  necessary.    Once  the  shape  is  correct,  a 
compactor  should be used  to compact  the  tread, which  should appear 
sealed when finished with no loose stone. 
 
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS  CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY 
Local earth/soil      Hand Tools 
Local stone      Dumper 
        Mini‐Skid Steer 

 
 MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAIL FEATURE – Grade Reversal 



5673 Wrenwyck Place, Weldon Spring, MO 63304 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 9

DESCRIPTION 
Pump  tracks  are  an  easy  way  to  add  challenge  to  an  existing  trail 
system.    Pump  tracks  consist  of  bumps  (called  rollers)  and  earthen 
berms that vary in height and frequency.  These land forms allow riders 
to  navigate  through  the  pump  track  course  without  pedaling  by 
absorbing the front side of the rollers and compressing the back side.  
They are relatively small in overall size and can fit anywhere.  For land 
managers, pump tracks provide a fresh, low‐risk recreation option in a 
central, easily managed location.  Pump tracks provide a fun place for 
kid’s to play, experienced riders to learn new skills and friends/family a 
place to hang out. 
 
DESIGN COMMENTS 
The  pump  track will  be  designed with  features  that  are  suitable  for 
riders of all abilities.  It will be designed to allow riders to develop skills 
and  experience  needed  for more  advanced  features.   Minimum  size 
should be 600 square feet and be built on a slight grade of 2‐5 percent 
for drainage. 
 
CONSTRUCTION METHODOLOGY 
Existing dirt can be used, but  it’s best to  import  loam with  fairly high 
clay  content.    Over  time,  the  soil  will  compact,  which  will  aid  in 
drainage  and  sustainability.    The  use  of  materials  other  than 
compacted soil may be considered in the construction of pump tracks.  
These  other materials will  be  selected based  on durability  and  their 
need  for on‐going maintenance.   Construction begins with  the berms 
and then rollers are spaced evenly between. 
 
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS  CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY 
Local earth/soil      Hand Tools 
        Dumper 
        Mini‐Skid Steer 
        Compactor 

 
MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAIL FEATURE – Pump Track 



5673 Wrenwyck Place, Weldon Spring, MO 63304 

www.gorctrails.com  

Gateway Off-Road Cyclists 1

Description 
A  family  trail  provides  a  safe  introduction  to  the  sport  of  mountain 
biking.  This is classified as the easiest of all trails and should be able to 
be ridden by all users on any type of off‐road bicycle.   The trail  is wide 
and  free of major obstacles while maintaining a nearly  flat grade.   The 
ideal location is close to the trailhead/parking area. 
 
Design Comments 
The  family  trail will utilize many of  the  same  concepts as pump  tracks 
but arrange these features in a linear manner to create a trail.  The trail 
will  be  36”  to  48”  wide  and  free  of  major  obstacles  with  possible 
advanced alternate  lines provided to promote skill progression.   Grades 
should be kept to less than 3‐4% with no steep climbs. 
 
Construction Materials    Construction Machinery 
Local earth/soil      Hand Tools 
Local stone      Dumper 
        Mini‐Skid Steer 
        Compactor 

 
MOUNTAIN BIKE TRAIL FEATURE – Family Trail 
 



DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY 
ST. LOUIS DISTRICT CORPS OF ENGINEERS 

1222 SPRUCE STREET 
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 63103-2833 

  
 REPLY TO 

      ATTENTION OF:                          
October 13, 2023 

 
Regulatory Branch 
File Number: MVS-2023-597 
 
City of Chesterfield 
c/o Mr. TW Dieckmann 
690 Chesterfield Parkway West  
Chesterfield, Missouri 63017 
 
 
Dear Mr. Dieckmann: 
 
     We have reviewed your request for authorization for the City of Chesterfield’s River’s Edge Park- 
Mountain Bike Trails. The project includes the development of a mountain bike specific trail network that is 
to be completed in 3 phases. The plans include construction of a sustainable single track trail system with 
a natural surface, which will include features such as berms, rollers, jumps etc. The existing gravel trail, 
pavilion, fishing dock and restroom are all planned to remain and to be utilized along with the development 
of the bike trails.     
 
 In 1997, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers issued Department of the Army Section 404 Permit MVS-
1996-12870, to the City of Chesterfield. The special conditions of P-2032 required the City to provide 
compensatory mitigation to offset the unavoidable loss of wetlands, which was conducted and 
implemented through the Rivers Edge Park site. Although the site was constructed with the purpose of 
providing compensatory wetland mitigation, the Corps determined that the site was not functioning 
adequately or as designed and an alternate mitigation site was acquired along the Missouri River in 
Franklin County, Missouri. Although the mitigation area is no longer within the Rivers Edge Park site, the 
conservation easement that was originally required on the site, remains in effect.  
 
 We have considered your request to construct the River’s Edge Park- Mountain Bike Trails, due to 
condition 4b and 4e of the conservation easement that was implemented for the site on October 3, 1997. 
The construction of the bike trails is determined to have minimal effect on the natural communities that are 
located within the site and will also increase the outdoor recreational potential of the area. A site visit 
conducted on October 6, 2023 confirmed that there are no wetlands located within the project site and 
there is no defined connection from the site to the Missouri River. For these reasons, the Corps has 
determined that the City of Chesterfield may proceed with the Rivers Edge Park- Mountain Bike Trails 
project, in coordination with the fall 2023 trail proposal.  
   
          If you have any questions, please contact me at (314) 331-8579.  Please refer to file number MVS-
2023-597. The St. Louis District Regulatory Branch is committed to providing quality and timely service to 
our customers.  In an effort to improve customer service, please take a moment to go to our Customer 
Service Survey found on our web site at https://regulatory.ops.usace.army.mil/customer-service-survey/.  
                                  

 
 
 
Jennifer L. Skiles  

                                    Project Manager   
         Regulatory Branch 

Digitally signed by 
SKILES.JENNIFER.LYNN.1274934
812 
Date: 2023.10.13 12:07:45 -05'00'

https://regulatory.ops.usace.army.mil/customer-service-survey/


MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Mike Geisel, City Administrator  
 
FROM: TW Dieckmann, Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts 
  
SUBJECT: Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of Council Meeting 

Results  
 
  DATE: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A meeting of the Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of the Chesterfield City Council was held 
on Wednesday, November 1, 2023 in Conference Room 101. 
 
In attendance were: Chair Mary Monachella (Ward I), Councilmember Gary Budoor (Ward IV), 
Councilmember Dan Hurt (Ward III), and Councilmember Aaron Wahl (Ward II).   
 
Also in attendance were:  Councilmember Merrell Hansen, Mayor Bob Nation, Bryan Adams 
(Gateway Off-Road Cyclists-GORC), Glenn Meyer (GORC), Kyle McCawley (Waters Edge 
Aquatic Design), TW Dieckmann, Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts; Kari Johnson, 
Superintendent of Recreation, Ann-Marie Stagoski, Parks, Recreation & Arts Office Coordinator; 
and resident Barbara Briggs (PRACAC Chair). 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MEETING SUMMARY 
    

A. Approval of the August 8, 2023 Committee Meeting Summary 
 
Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve the Meeting Summary of  
August 8, 2023 with the correction of spelling Mary Monachella’s name.   The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Wahl and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 
II. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve staff recommendation to 
proceed with the trail proposal at River’s Edge Park. The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Budoor and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 

B. Kyle McCawley from Waters Edge Aquatic Design presented the findings from 
the Aquatic Feasibility Study, and discussed five potential scenarios.  
Councilmember Monachella stated that they were accepting the report 
presented by staff.  

 
C. Councilmember Monachella made a motion to approve the public art proposal 

submitted by Rob Kilo, subject to a positive core sample of the tree and a signed 
agreement with the donor.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  
Councilmember Hurt had left the meeting by this time.  The motion passed by a 
voice vote of 3-0. 

 

 

TW Dieckmann
Highlight



Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of Council Meeting Summary 
November 1, 2023 

2 

D. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to 1) accept the Round 24 Municipal Parks 
Commission grant award, 2) authorize the City Administrator to sign the grant 
agreement, and 3) amend the FY24 proposed budget by adding $546,250 in 
revenue to account code 119-000-4359 and $585,000 in expenses to account 
code 119-084-5299 (parks special projects), and move to full council.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  The motion passed by a voice 
vote of 3-0. 
 

E. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to accept staff recommendation to put up 
holiday banners on light poles along Chesterfield Parkway West.  The banners 
will be a variety of colors using existing designs.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Budoor.  The motion passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 
 

F. Councilmember Monachella made a motion to accept staff recommendation to 
1) increase CFAC non-resident daily admission fee to from $9 to $11 in 2024, 
and 2) open at 4:00 instead of noon, from the third week prior to Labor Day 
through Labor Day.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  The 
motion passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 

 
III. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to accept the City Administrator’s and the 
parks department recommendation as outlined in a October 26, 2023 memo from 
Mr. Geisel. It recommended designating four acres of currently undeveloped 
parkland east of CVAC, with the intent of a local athletic group, to fund, operate, 
and maintain cricket facilities, on a two-year agreement.  The project would be 
completely funded and maintained by the cricket group with no city funding, 
maintenance or other resources provided by the city.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Monachella, and passed by voice vote of 3-0. 
   

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:06 p.m. 



 
 

Memorandum 

 
To:  TW Dieckmann, CPRE 

  Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts 
   

From: Kari Johnson, CPRP 
  Superintendent of Recreation 
 

Date:   

Re:   Chesterfield Family Aquatic Center – 2024 recommendations 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

As we wrap up the 2023 Aquatic Center season, we begin to analyze all aspects of our operations, particularly hours of 

operations and fees.   

We currently close the facility on weekdays during the last two weeks of the season because most of our part-time staff 

go back to school.  In 2023, many lifeguards went back to school the third week before our facility closes.  In 2024, staff 

recommend reducing hours of operation for the third week before closing by the following.  Open the leisure pool 

only from 12 - 4 p.m. (during school) and open the entire facility from 4 - 7 p.m (after school).  All hours and openings 

depend on staffing levels.   Below is a summary of when other municipal pools went to “weekend” schedules in 2023. 

City Current Start of 
 Weekends Only 

Ballwin August 21 

Chesterfield August 20 

Clayton August 14 

Ellisville August 14 

Kirkwood August 14 

Manchester August 14 

Maryland Heights August 21 

Richmond Heights August 20 

St. Charles August 20 

 

Staff also recommend increasing our daily non-resident admission fee by $2 (~22% more than residents), with no 

change to resident fees.  A small increase will help offset fiscal impacts of increasing hourly wages to attract and retain 

part-time employees.  The chart below summarizes current and recommended pricing.  Attached is a spreadsheet 

comparison of local municipalities.  Please let me know if you have questions.  Thank you for your consideration. 

Classification 2023 
Daily Fee 

2024 
Daily Fee 

Resident – Child or Senior 
 

$6 $6 

Resident - Adult $7 $7 

Non-Resident  $9 $11 

 

Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts

October 27, 2023

TW Dieckmann
TW Dieckmann signature



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Mike Geisel, City Administrator  
 
FROM: TW Dieckmann, Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts 
  
SUBJECT: Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of Council Meeting 

Results  
 
  DATE: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A meeting of the Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of the Chesterfield City Council was held 
on Wednesday, November 1, 2023 in Conference Room 101. 
 
In attendance were: Chair Mary Monachella (Ward I), Councilmember Gary Budoor (Ward IV), 
Councilmember Dan Hurt (Ward III), and Councilmember Aaron Wahl (Ward II).   
 
Also in attendance were:  Councilmember Merrell Hansen, Mayor Bob Nation, Bryan Adams 
(Gateway Off-Road Cyclists-GORC), Glenn Meyer (GORC), Kyle McCawley (Waters Edge 
Aquatic Design), TW Dieckmann, Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts; Kari Johnson, 
Superintendent of Recreation, Ann-Marie Stagoski, Parks, Recreation & Arts Office Coordinator; 
and resident Barbara Briggs (PRACAC Chair). 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MEETING SUMMARY 
    

A. Approval of the August 8, 2023 Committee Meeting Summary 
 
Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve the Meeting Summary of  
August 8, 2023 with the correction of spelling Mary Monachella’s name.   The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Wahl and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 
II. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve staff recommendation to 
proceed with the trail proposal at River’s Edge Park. The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Budoor and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 

B. Kyle McCawley from Waters Edge Aquatic Design presented the findings from 
the Aquatic Feasibility Study, and discussed five potential scenarios.  
Councilmember Monachella stated that they were accepting the report 
presented by staff.  

 
C. Councilmember Monachella made a motion to approve the public art proposal 

submitted by Rob Kilo, subject to a positive core sample of the tree and a signed 
agreement with the donor.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  
Councilmember Hurt had left the meeting by this time.  The motion passed by a 
voice vote of 3-0. 

 

 



Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of Council Meeting Summary 
November 1, 2023 

2 

D. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to 1) accept the Round 24 Municipal Parks 
Commission grant award, 2) authorize the City Administrator to sign the grant 
agreement, and 3) amend the FY24 proposed budget by adding $546,250 in 
revenue to account code 119-000-4359 and $585,000 in expenses to account 
code 119-084-5299 (parks special projects), and move to full council.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  The motion passed by a voice 
vote of 3-0. 
 

E. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to accept staff recommendation to put up 
holiday banners on light poles along Chesterfield Parkway West.  The banners 
will be a variety of colors using existing designs.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Budoor.  The motion passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 
 

F. Councilmember Monachella made a motion to accept staff recommendation to 
1) increase CFAC non-resident daily admission fee to from $9 to $11 in 2024, 
and 2) open at 4:00 instead of noon, from the third week prior to Labor Day 
through Labor Day.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  The 
motion passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 

 
III. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to accept the City Administrator’s and the 
parks department recommendation as outlined in a October 26, 2023 memo from 
Mr. Geisel. It recommended designating four acres of currently undeveloped 
parkland east of CVAC, with the intent of a local athletic group, to fund, operate, 
and maintain cricket facilities, on a two-year agreement.  The project would be 
completely funded and maintained by the cricket group with no city funding, 
maintenance or other resources provided by the city.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Monachella, and passed by voice vote of 3-0. 
   

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:06 p.m. 

TW Dieckmann
Highlight



TO: Mayor & City Council

Date:  October 26th. 2023

RE: Parks, Recreation and Arts – Cricket Consideration

As we have worked with the cricket community over the last few years, we have
been unsuccessful in developing a mutually agreeable strategy to provide public
cricket facilities. Under any scenario, creation of public cricket facilities will require
considerable space and financial resources, including the ongoing operational
expenditures.  To date, a major obstacle has been the lack of a demonstrated
demand commensurate with the commitment of public resources.

In an effort to allow the cricket community to develop a program, demonstrate
demand, while concurrently avoiding any significant public expense;  I propose that
the City consider granting a two year, non-exclusive license to a designated
Chesterfield Cricket advocacy group, for the use of roughly a designated four (4)
acre area on the undeveloped parcel at the east end of the Chesterfield Valley
Athletic Complex.  Such license would be subject to the following terms:

1) Cricket Advocacy group must accept the terms of use, provide insurance and
liability waivers as do all users of City facilities.  It must be understood that
the location of the temporary use license is NOT intended as a permanent
location and there is no implication that the temporary licensed area would be
concurrent with any future permanent Cricket facilities, should that be
considered at any time in the future.  The temporary license location shall be
designated and is simply a currently available space for a defined term and
would not be concurrent with future development, grades, infrastructure, and
use of the property.

2) Any site improvements, construction, or installations shall be done by the
Cricket Advocacy group at their sole expense and must be individually
approved by the Director of Parks, Recreation and Arts so as to avoid conflicts
with infrastructure installations, and other use of the property.  Any
improvements are to be considered temporary and shall be removed at the
end of the license term.

Mike Geisel

City Administrator

690 Chesterfield Pkwy W

Chesterfield MO 63017

Phone 636-537-4711

Fax 636-537-4798

____________________________________________________________________________

OFFICE OF THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR



Cricket Consideration
October 26, 2023
Page 2

3) Cricket Advocacy group is responsible for all care, maintenance, and
operation of the licensed area.

The temporary license is simply an effort to allow the Cricket community to develop,
grow, and demonstrate the demand for Cricket facilities within Chesterfield.  There
is no intent or implied commitment for any future City resources.  Those decisions
will be deferred until the expiration of the temporary license agreement.

Acting in this manner will allow the Cricket community an opportunity to
demonstrate the demand and commitment.  It will also concurrently allow the City
to observe the use, impact, and operations required for a potential permanent
facility.

In short, I recommend that the Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee approve the
concept of temporarily (two years) designating roughly four acres of currently under-
utilized park property, with the intent of licensing a local athletic group, to fund,
operate, and maintain Cricket facilities.

If the Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee concurs with this proposal, we will
work with City Attorney Chris Graville to develop a license agreement and to work
with Cricket advocates to identify an appropriate group to enter into the license
agreement with the City, subject to final approval by the full City Council.

I look forward to discussing this recommendation with the Committee on November
1st, 2023.



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Mike Geisel, City Administrator  
 
FROM: TW Dieckmann, Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts 
  
SUBJECT: Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of Council Meeting 

Results  
 
  DATE: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A meeting of the Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of the Chesterfield City Council was held 
on Wednesday, November 1, 2023 in Conference Room 101. 
 
In attendance were: Chair Mary Monachella (Ward I), Councilmember Gary Budoor (Ward IV), 
Councilmember Dan Hurt (Ward III), and Councilmember Aaron Wahl (Ward II).   
 
Also in attendance were:  Councilmember Merrell Hansen, Mayor Bob Nation, Bryan Adams 
(Gateway Off-Road Cyclists-GORC), Glenn Meyer (GORC), Kyle McCawley (Waters Edge 
Aquatic Design), TW Dieckmann, Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts; Kari Johnson, 
Superintendent of Recreation, Ann-Marie Stagoski, Parks, Recreation & Arts Office Coordinator; 
and resident Barbara Briggs (PRACAC Chair). 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MEETING SUMMARY 
    

A. Approval of the August 8, 2023 Committee Meeting Summary 
 
Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve the Meeting Summary of  
August 8, 2023 with the correction of spelling Mary Monachella’s name.   The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Wahl and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 
II. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve staff recommendation to 
proceed with the trail proposal at River’s Edge Park. The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Budoor and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 

B. Kyle McCawley from Waters Edge Aquatic Design presented the findings from 
the Aquatic Feasibility Study, and discussed five potential scenarios.  
Councilmember Monachella stated that they were accepting the report 
presented by staff.  

 
C. Councilmember Monachella made a motion to approve the public art proposal 

submitted by Rob Kilo, subject to a positive core sample of the tree and a signed 
agreement with the donor.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  
Councilmember Hurt had left the meeting by this time.  The motion passed by a 
voice vote of 3-0. 

 

 



Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of Council Meeting Summary 
November 1, 2023 

2 

D. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to 1) accept the Round 24 Municipal Parks 
Commission grant award, 2) authorize the City Administrator to sign the grant 
agreement, and 3) amend the FY24 proposed budget by adding $546,250 in 
revenue to account code 119-000-4359 and $585,000 in expenses to account 
code 119-084-5299 (parks special projects), and move to full council.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  The motion passed by a voice 
vote of 3-0. 
 

E. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to accept staff recommendation to put up 
holiday banners on light poles along Chesterfield Parkway West.  The banners 
will be a variety of colors using existing designs.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Budoor.  The motion passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 
 

F. Councilmember Monachella made a motion to accept staff recommendation to 
1) increase CFAC non-resident daily admission fee to from $9 to $11 in 2024, 
and 2) open at 4:00 instead of noon, from the third week prior to Labor Day 
through Labor Day.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  The 
motion passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 

 
III. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to accept the City Administrator’s and the 
parks department recommendation as outlined in a October 26, 2023 memo from 
Mr. Geisel. It recommended designating four acres of currently undeveloped 
parkland east of CVAC, with the intent of a local athletic group, to fund, operate, 
and maintain cricket facilities, on a two-year agreement.  The project would be 
completely funded and maintained by the cricket group with no city funding, 
maintenance or other resources provided by the city.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Monachella, and passed by voice vote of 3-0. 
   

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:06 p.m. 

TW Dieckmann
Highlight



 
 

Memorandum 

 
To:  Mike Geisel 

  City Administrator 
   

From: TW Dieckmann, CPRE 
  Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts 
 

Date:  11/7/2023 

Re:   holiday banners – Chesterfield Parkway 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

At the August 8, 2023 Parks, Recreation and Arts (PRA) Committee of Council meeting, there was a discussion about 

holiday decorations along Chesterfield Parkway and City Hall.  Staff were asked to research options that could represent 

multiple cultures and religions.  Staff presented them at the November 1, 2023 PRA Committee of Council meeting. 

Research determined that adding electrical to street median and roadside concrete light poles was not only cost 

prohibitive (well into six figures estimated), but also would void the warranty on the poles if altered to add electrical 

service.  We abandoned that idea.  Staff then focused on banners, from Pfizer to City Hall to Central Park and to El Salto 

on Chesterfield Parkway West.  Staff also contacted Maverick, who was hired for holiday decorations at Central Park in 

2022.  The attached proposal includes 1) City Hall decorations and 2) holiday banners for Chesterfield Parkway West.   

Unfortunately, Maverick informed us the City Hall decorations would not be available for up to 6 weeks.  That is well 

into December, so the PRA Committee of Council did not consider that an option for 2023.  We then focused on the 

banner discussion.  The banner portion of this proposal was approved by 3-0 vote (see attached draft meeting results). 

But with multiple colors that are more representative of different holiday traditions among our diverse population.  Staff 

were also asked to seek multiple quotes in addition to the Landmark quote presented November 1 ($5180.18).  Staff are 

in process of doing so.  This is consistent with city purchasing procedures for purchases over $5000. 

We now seek City Council approval for the holiday banners.  Payment would come from existing funds in the PRA FY23 

operating budget.  No additional funding is requested.  Please let me know if you have questions.  Thank you for your 

consideration. 

TW Dieckmann
TW Dieckmann signature



HOLIDAY 2023
L O O K B O O K

 



01.
DESIGN

Our expert holiday lighting team will work closely with you to
create a stunning and customized design that enhances the

beauty of your commercial property during the holiday season. We
will consider your preferences, budget, and the architectural

features of your property to create a unique lighting concept that
will dazzle your clients and visitors.



02.
INSTALLATION

Our skilled technicians will efficiently and safely install Christmas
lights and décor on your commercial property. From rooftops and
trees to windows and walkways, we will meticulously place lights
and décor, ensuring a professional and visually appealing display.

We utilize high-quality materials and innovative techniques to
ensure the longevity and durability of the installation.



03.
MAINTENANCE

We offer comprehensive maintenance services to keep your displays
looking their best throughout the season. Our team will regularly
inspect and repair any issues, such as burnt-out bulbs or tangled
wires, to ensure that your display remains vibrant and attractive.

With our proactive maintenance approach, you can relax knowing
that your lights will shine brightly every night.



04.
REMOVAL

Once the holiday season comes to an end, our dedicated team will
efficiently remove all Christmas lights and décor from your

commercial property. We understand the importance of timely
removal to maintain the professionalism of your establishment. Our

technicians will carefully dismantle and pack everything, leaving
your property clean and ready for the next season.



05.
STORAGE

Don't worry about the hassle of storing your Christmas lights and
decorations until the next holiday season. We provide secure and

organized storage solutions for your lights, ensuring their safety and
longevity. Our facilities are designed to protect your investment, and

when the time comes, we'll deliver them back to your property for
hassle-free installation.



Creating bright holidays for all to enjoy

PROFESSIONAL
HOLIDAY DECOR



 
WATERFALL LIGHTING

 & WREATHS 

    
      

  







Elegance Decor

ELEGANCE DECORATED  WARM WHITE WREATH AND GARLAND WITH GOLD BOW  







 

Waterfall Feature w/ Wreaths   
Elegance Decor package (Garland & Wreaths)

Purchase Price $17,806  

 Lease Price $14,092 Per Year for 3 Years



Office: 314-283-7736
Cell: 314-482-9692

Garrett@mavericksoftwash.com

THANK
YOU

 3

mailto:Garrett@mavericksoftwash.com


Page 1 of 1

Estimate #: 14404
175 Chesterfield Industrial Blvd.
Chesterfield, MO 63005
Ph:  (636) 536-0400
FAX:  (636) 536-0400 call first
Email:  info@landmarksignusa.com
Web:  http://www.landmarksignusa.com

Landmark Sign Company

Email:

Salesperson: Brian Hendren

9/15/2023  11:01:34AMCreated Date: City of Chesterfield - ParksPrepared For:
Ethan. CollierContact:

Email:

Address:

ecollier@chesterfield.mo.us

bhendren@landmarksignusa.com

(636) 536-0400 call first

(636) 536-0400

Not Specified:

Not Specified:

Office Phone: (636) 812-9503

Chesterfield, MO  Entered by: Brian Hendren

Description: Christmas Banners - 23.5 x 72"

 69Product:

Subtotal

$75.08 

Unit Price

$5,180.18 1

Quantity

Description:

Misc

Fabricate Banners

23.5" x 72" QTY 69

Double sided Printing

"City of Chesterfield" 

"Happy Hollidays"

Double Pocket Hangers at top and Bottom

Customer to pick up.

Notes * This estimate/order is subject to change based on changes and/or extraordinary requirements on the job site.

* The estimate is good for 30 days from the date above unless otherwise specified.

* For signs including permit, Landmark will facilitate permit and any out of pocket costs (i.e. permit fees) will be passed to client at cost, 

unless otherwise specified.  Additional meetings and/or travel required for permitting - i.e. historical review, planning and zoning, etc. - 

will be billed to client at $75 per hour plus out of pocket

* Electrical permits and/or licensed electrical work not included unless otherwise specified.

* For signs requiring electrical permit and/or licensed electricians to perform work, Landmark can/will facilitate that work through 

proper subcontractors and pass through the cost to client, if desired.

* For electrical signs where connection is included, connection will be made to supplied electrical junction box designated for the sign 

with clear path and within 6 feet of the sign, unless otherwise specified.

* Landmark does not make any warranty for product or functionality failure caused by misuse, improper voltage, lightning, fire, water 

or other acts of nature, vandalism, power surge, or other effects caused by electrical outside the product.

* Payment terms are 50% upon acceptance to begin the work; balance due upon delivery/installation.

* Landmark Sign Company retains ownership of the sign until paid in full.  If signs are removed or re-possessed due to non-payment 

then any further re-delivery, re-installation or other work required by Landmark once payment is received in full is the responsibility of 

client.

* A 3% credit card processing fee will be added for all credit card payments 

* Finance charges up to the maximum allowable by law may be added to unpaid balances on charges for services unpaid after 30 

days.

Thank you for the opportunity to serve you and please contact us with any questions!
$5,180.18 Estimate Total:

$5,180.18 Subtotal:

Total: $5,180.18 

Client Reply Request

Estimate Accepted "As Is".  Please proceed with Order.

Changes required, please contact me.

Other:

/    /SIGN: Date:

Print Date:  10/2/2023   8:25:25AM

"Your image. Done right."





MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Mike Geisel, City Administrator  
 
FROM: TW Dieckmann, Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts 
  
SUBJECT: Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of Council Meeting 

Results  
 
  DATE: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A meeting of the Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of the Chesterfield City Council was held 
on Wednesday, November 1, 2023 in Conference Room 101. 
 
In attendance were: Chair Mary Monachella (Ward I), Councilmember Gary Budoor (Ward IV), 
Councilmember Dan Hurt (Ward III), and Councilmember Aaron Wahl (Ward II).   
 
Also in attendance were:  Councilmember Merrell Hansen, Mayor Bob Nation, Bryan Adams 
(Gateway Off-Road Cyclists-GORC), Glenn Meyer (GORC), Kyle McCawley (Waters Edge 
Aquatic Design), TW Dieckmann, Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts; Kari Johnson, 
Superintendent of Recreation, Ann-Marie Stagoski, Parks, Recreation & Arts Office Coordinator; 
and resident Barbara Briggs (PRACAC Chair). 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MEETING SUMMARY 
    

A. Approval of the August 8, 2023 Committee Meeting Summary 
 
Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve the Meeting Summary of  
August 8, 2023 with the correction of spelling Mary Monachella’s name.   The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Wahl and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 
II. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve staff recommendation to 
proceed with the trail proposal at River’s Edge Park. The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Budoor and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 

B. Kyle McCawley from Waters Edge Aquatic Design presented the findings from 
the Aquatic Feasibility Study, and discussed five potential scenarios.  
Councilmember Monachella stated that they were accepting the report 
presented by staff.  

 
C. Councilmember Monachella made a motion to approve the public art proposal 

submitted by Rob Kilo, subject to a positive core sample of the tree and a signed 
agreement with the donor.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  
Councilmember Hurt had left the meeting by this time.  The motion passed by a 
voice vote of 3-0. 

 

 



Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of Council Meeting Summary 
November 1, 2023 

2 

D. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to 1) accept the Round 24 Municipal Parks 
Commission grant award, 2) authorize the City Administrator to sign the grant 
agreement, and 3) amend the FY24 proposed budget by adding $546,250 in 
revenue to account code 119-000-4359 and $585,000 in expenses to account 
code 119-084-5299 (parks special projects), and move to full council.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  The motion passed by a voice 
vote of 3-0. 
 

E. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to accept staff recommendation to put up 
holiday banners on light poles along Chesterfield Parkway West.  The banners 
will be a variety of colors using existing designs.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Budoor.  The motion passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 
 

F. Councilmember Monachella made a motion to accept staff recommendation to 
1) increase CFAC non-resident daily admission fee to from $9 to $11 in 2024, 
and 2) open at 4:00 instead of noon, from the third week prior to Labor Day 
through Labor Day.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  The 
motion passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 

 
III. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to accept the City Administrator’s and the 
parks department recommendation as outlined in a October 26, 2023 memo from 
Mr. Geisel. It recommended designating four acres of currently undeveloped 
parkland east of CVAC, with the intent of a local athletic group, to fund, operate, 
and maintain cricket facilities, on a two-year agreement.  The project would be 
completely funded and maintained by the cricket group with no city funding, 
maintenance or other resources provided by the city.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Monachella, and passed by voice vote of 3-0. 
   

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:06 p.m. 

TW Dieckmann
Highlight



 
 

Memorandum 

 
To:  Mike Geisel, City Administrator 

   
From: TW Dieckmann, CPRE 

  Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts 
 
Date:  10/27/2023 

Re:   RD24 MUNI grant for Miracle Field renovations  

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

We were recently awarded a Municipal Parks Grant in Round 24 for Miracle Field and 
playground renovations at CVAC.  The grant is for $546,250 with a city match of at least 
$28,750.  Funds will not be received until FY24.  We will have 18 months to complete the 

project.  After completion, we will receive a $546,250 reimbursement from the Municipal 
Parks Grant Commission.  
 

This grant award will be reviewed by the Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee of Council 
November 1, 2023.  If approved by the Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of Council, I 

request this be sent to City Council for their approval. 
 
I am requesting that the PRA Committee of Council 1) accept the grant award, 2) amend the 

FY24 budget request to include revenue and expenses relative to this project, and 3) authorize 
the City Administrator to execute the grant agreement.  

 

 
I request a FY24 budget amendment of $546,250 in revenue to account code 119-000-4359 

and $585,000 in expenses to account code 119-084-5299 (parks special projects).  The 
$585,000 represents total project cost.  It includes the grant award of $546,250 and the 
minimum 5% city match of $28,750 from the grant application.  It also includes an additional 

$10,000 in case product or installation costs rise before we issue a PO in FY24. 
 

I have attached for your review the grant award letter from the grant commission and a 
budget amendment form. Staff will begin working on the project upon City Council approval 
of these requests.  We hope to replace the scoreboard before spring 2024, begin playground 

work in spring 2024 - in time for the Miracle Field spring league, and begin Miracle Field 
surface renovations in summer 2024, in between spring and fall Miracle Field League 

seasons.  The surface work requires consistent temperatures above 50 degrees Fahrenheit 
over three weeks, so we chose summer to avoid risk of early spring cold and rain. 
 

Thank you for your consideration.  Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
 

 
 

 
 

(attached).







MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Mike Geisel, City Administrator  
 
FROM: TW Dieckmann, Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts 
  
SUBJECT: Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of Council Meeting 

Results  
 
  DATE: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A meeting of the Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of the Chesterfield City Council was held 
on Wednesday, November 1, 2023 in Conference Room 101. 
 
In attendance were: Chair Mary Monachella (Ward I), Councilmember Gary Budoor (Ward IV), 
Councilmember Dan Hurt (Ward III), and Councilmember Aaron Wahl (Ward II).   
 
Also in attendance were:  Councilmember Merrell Hansen, Mayor Bob Nation, Bryan Adams 
(Gateway Off-Road Cyclists-GORC), Glenn Meyer (GORC), Kyle McCawley (Waters Edge 
Aquatic Design), TW Dieckmann, Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts; Kari Johnson, 
Superintendent of Recreation, Ann-Marie Stagoski, Parks, Recreation & Arts Office Coordinator; 
and resident Barbara Briggs (PRACAC Chair). 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MEETING SUMMARY 
    

A. Approval of the August 8, 2023 Committee Meeting Summary 
 
Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve the Meeting Summary of  
August 8, 2023 with the correction of spelling Mary Monachella’s name.   The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Wahl and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 
II. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve staff recommendation to 
proceed with the trail proposal at River’s Edge Park. The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Budoor and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 

B. Kyle McCawley from Waters Edge Aquatic Design presented the findings from 
the Aquatic Feasibility Study, and discussed five potential scenarios.  
Councilmember Monachella stated that they were accepting the report 
presented by staff.  

 
C. Councilmember Monachella made a motion to approve the public art proposal 

submitted by Rob Kilo, subject to a positive core sample of the tree and a signed 
agreement with the donor.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  
Councilmember Hurt had left the meeting by this time.  The motion passed by a 
voice vote of 3-0. 

 

 



Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of Council Meeting Summary 
November 1, 2023 

2 

D. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to 1) accept the Round 24 Municipal Parks 
Commission grant award, 2) authorize the City Administrator to sign the grant 
agreement, and 3) amend the FY24 proposed budget by adding $546,250 in 
revenue to account code 119-000-4359 and $585,000 in expenses to account 
code 119-084-5299 (parks special projects), and move to full council.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  The motion passed by a voice 
vote of 3-0. 
 

E. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to accept staff recommendation to put up 
holiday banners on light poles along Chesterfield Parkway West.  The banners 
will be a variety of colors using existing designs.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Budoor.  The motion passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 
 

F. Councilmember Monachella made a motion to accept staff recommendation to 
1) increase CFAC non-resident daily admission fee to from $9 to $11 in 2024, 
and 2) open at 4:00 instead of noon, from the third week prior to Labor Day 
through Labor Day.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  The 
motion passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 

 
III. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to accept the City Administrator’s and the 
parks department recommendation as outlined in a October 26, 2023 memo from 
Mr. Geisel. It recommended designating four acres of currently undeveloped 
parkland east of CVAC, with the intent of a local athletic group, to fund, operate, 
and maintain cricket facilities, on a two-year agreement.  The project would be 
completely funded and maintained by the cricket group with no city funding, 
maintenance or other resources provided by the city.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Monachella, and passed by voice vote of 3-0. 
   

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:06 p.m. 

TW Dieckmann
Highlight



















City of Chesterfield
attn: Parks, Recreation & Arts Director
690 Chesterfield Parkway West
Chesterfield, MO 63017











Public Art Proposal – Central Park  
Submitted 10-18-23 
 
Location:   
Chesterfield Central Park 
16365 Lydia Hill Drive, Chesterfield, MO 63017 
Dead Red Oak tree: From Central Park parking lot, take trail pathway to the right of the 
playground, stay on trail past the stairwell to the stream, stay on trail past the wooden 
deck with the two benches, and the dead Red Oak tree is directly on the left.   
 
Red Oak tree trunk to be cut down by the City at exactly 14’ above the ground level 
trunk base.  

  
 
Draft proposal of ‘totem pole’ of animals – final design may vary from draft 
 
Tree front side facing trail, bottom up from ground level: turtle, then rabbit, then bear, 
then butterfly. Or butterflies woven throughout. Painted large red Cardinal bird on top. 
 
Tree back side facing away from trail visible from wooden deck, bottom up from ground 
level: raccoon, then deer, then partially carved Native American face/feathers.  
 
Painted/stained/sealed. Proposal to include completing the same one year after.  
 
Examples of Wood Den chainsaw carving from their website is provided in the attached 
photo.   
 
Wood carving company: 
The Wood Den ‘Chainsaw Carving’ 
Ryan Meyer 
2 North 6th St., Festus, MO 63028 
Wood-den.com 
636-209-0514 
 
Funding: Full payment to be funded privately. Payment of 50% down and 50% at 
completion.  Estimated total cost is <$4000.00 
 

   
 

 
 
Proposal submitted by The Rob Kilo Family  





MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Mike Geisel, City Administrator  
 
FROM: TW Dieckmann, Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts 
  
SUBJECT: Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of Council Meeting 

Results  
 
  DATE: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A meeting of the Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of the Chesterfield City Council was held 
on Wednesday, November 1, 2023 in Conference Room 101. 
 
In attendance were: Chair Mary Monachella (Ward I), Councilmember Gary Budoor (Ward IV), 
Councilmember Dan Hurt (Ward III), and Councilmember Aaron Wahl (Ward II).   
 
Also in attendance were:  Councilmember Merrell Hansen, Mayor Bob Nation, Bryan Adams 
(Gateway Off-Road Cyclists-GORC), Glenn Meyer (GORC), Kyle McCawley (Waters Edge 
Aquatic Design), TW Dieckmann, Director of Parks, Recreation & Arts; Kari Johnson, 
Superintendent of Recreation, Ann-Marie Stagoski, Parks, Recreation & Arts Office Coordinator; 
and resident Barbara Briggs (PRACAC Chair). 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MEETING SUMMARY 
    

A. Approval of the August 8, 2023 Committee Meeting Summary 
 
Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve the Meeting Summary of  
August 8, 2023 with the correction of spelling Mary Monachella’s name.   The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Wahl and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 
II. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Councilmember Hurt made a motion to approve staff recommendation to 
proceed with the trail proposal at River’s Edge Park. The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Budoor and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 

B. Kyle McCawley from Waters Edge Aquatic Design presented the findings from 
the Aquatic Feasibility Study, and discussed five potential scenarios.  
Councilmember Monachella stated that they were accepting the report 
presented by staff.  

 
C. Councilmember Monachella made a motion to approve the public art proposal 

submitted by Rob Kilo, subject to a positive core sample of the tree and a signed 
agreement with the donor.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  
Councilmember Hurt had left the meeting by this time.  The motion passed by a 
voice vote of 3-0. 

 

 

TW Dieckmann
Highlight



Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee of Council Meeting Summary 
November 1, 2023 

2 

D. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to 1) accept the Round 24 Municipal Parks 
Commission grant award, 2) authorize the City Administrator to sign the grant 
agreement, and 3) amend the FY24 proposed budget by adding $546,250 in 
revenue to account code 119-000-4359 and $585,000 in expenses to account 
code 119-084-5299 (parks special projects), and move to full council.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  The motion passed by a voice 
vote of 3-0. 
 

E. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to accept staff recommendation to put up 
holiday banners on light poles along Chesterfield Parkway West.  The banners 
will be a variety of colors using existing designs.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Budoor.  The motion passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 
 

F. Councilmember Monachella made a motion to accept staff recommendation to 
1) increase CFAC non-resident daily admission fee to from $9 to $11 in 2024, 
and 2) open at 4:00 instead of noon, from the third week prior to Labor Day 
through Labor Day.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Wahl.  The 
motion passed by a voice vote of 3-0. 

 
III. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Councilmember Wahl made a motion to accept the City Administrator’s and the 
parks department recommendation as outlined in a October 26, 2023 memo from 
Mr. Geisel. It recommended designating four acres of currently undeveloped 
parkland east of CVAC, with the intent of a local athletic group, to fund, operate, 
and maintain cricket facilities, on a two-year agreement.  The project would be 
completely funded and maintained by the cricket group with no city funding, 
maintenance or other resources provided by the city.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Monachella, and passed by voice vote of 3-0. 
   

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:06 p.m. 



PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos 
Vice Chair:  Councilmember Michael Moore 

 
Proposed Bill No. 3480 - Article XI Offenses – An Ordinance of the City of 
Chesterfield amending article XI offenses concerning drugs with respect to the 

legalization of adult use marijuana (First Reading) Public Health and Safety 
Committee recommends approval. 

 
Proposed Bill No. 3481 - Firearms Regulations – An Ordinance of the City of 
Chesterfield amending sections 210.900 and 220.150 of the City municipal code 

related to firearms regulations. (First Reading) Public Health and Safety 
Committee recommends approval. 

 
 
NEXT MEETING 

 
The next meeting of the Public Health and Safety Committee has not yet been 
scheduled. 

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Chief Ray 

Johnson or me prior to Monday’s meeting.   
 
 



MINUTES 
 

PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

NOVEMBER 7, 2023 
  

1.  Call to Order 
 
The meeting was called to order at 2:00 pm by Chairperson Councilmember Mary Ann 
Mastorakos.  

 
2. Roll Call 

 
Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos, Ward II, Chairperson, Councilmember Barb McGuinness, 
Ward I, Councilmember Michael Moore, Ward III, Councilmember Merrell Hansen, Ward IV, and 
Mayor Bob Nation.  Also in attendance was Chief Ray Johnson, Captain Cheryl Funkhouser and 
Mr. George Sconyers.  

 
3. Approval of Minutes 

 
Councilmember Moore motioned, and Councilmember McGuinness seconded to approve the 
minutes of the August 21, 2023, Public Health & Safety meeting.  The motion carried 4-0.   

 
4. Chief Johnson presented to the Committee a proposed ordinance amending Article XI offenses 

concerning drugs with respect to the legalization of adult use of marijuana.  The purpose of the 
proposed modification is to bring Chesterfield’s existing ordinance into compliance with State 
law regarding adult possession, distribution, and use of recreational marijuana.   

 
After discussion, Councilmember Hansen motioned, and Councilmember Moore seconded to 
approve the recommendation.  The motion carried 4-0. 

 
5. Chief Johnson presented to the Committee, a proposed ordinance amending City Ordinance 

sections 210.900 and 220.150 related to firearms regulations.  The purpose of the proposed 
amendment is to provide for the regulation/prohibition of the open carry of weapons within City 
parks.  While MO State Statutes now allow for the open carry of weapons, our current 
ordinances prohibit only the carrying of concealed weapons within City Parks.     

 
After discussion, Councilmember Moore motioned, and Chairperson Mastorakos seconded to 
approve the recommendation.  The motion carried 4-0. 

 
6. Chief Johnson updated the Committee on the issues of crime/shoplifting in the retail areas of 

Chesterfield Valley and his proposed plan to encourage merchant support of enforcement efforts 
to curtail the issues.  He also shared his recommendations to develop a procedure that would 
allow merchants to contact the Police Department for non-emergency (delayed) theft reports 
the merchant need for insurance purposes only, and the merchants did not desire prosecution 
for the thefts.   

 



After discussion, Councilmember Hansen motioned, and Councilmember Moore seconded to 
approve the recommendation which will be conveyed to the Valley merchants.   

 
7. No new meeting date was set at this time. 

 
8. Having no further business to discuss, Chairperson Mastorakos adjourned the meeting at 3:01 

pm.  



BILL ilO ORNIITAHCF NO.

AN ORI}IIIAJICE OF THE CITY OF CHESTERF'ITLD AME1TDING ARTICLE

Iil OFF'&ilSEfI COilCERHIXG DNUGS IruTH NSSPECT TO THE

TBGATIZATIOH OF AIITTTT USE MARIJUA$A

WIIEnEAS, a.n a.tnendrnent to the Missouri Constitution, herein referred to as

Amendment 3, \1ra$ approved by voters on November 8, 2A?,2 to decriminalize

adult use marijuana ind to provide for the regulated production, distribution,

testing, sale, and purchase of recreational marijuana by those ages 21 and

older; and

WHEREAS, Amend,ment 3 grves the City authoriaation to enact ordinances not

in con-{lict with Amendment g including t}re imposition of civil penalties for

certain violations related to the possession, dis8ibution, and use of recreational

marijuana; and

IpIIE3EAS, the city of chesterfield, having carefully shrdied Amendment 3 and

its mandate, wisliee to establish regUlations related to the possession,

distribution, and, use of recreationat rnarguana to protect the health, safety,

and general welfare; and

WIIDREAS, the City Council desires to amend tJre City's Code to protect the

health, safety, and welfare of tlre residents of the City.

$ow, THERETORE, BE IT Oru)AIt{ED BY THE CITV COUilCIL otr'THD

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURT AS FOLLOWS;

Se$_tig"* I; Section 210.18OO of the City of Chesterlield Municipal Codg

shall ue anr"naea as set forth below, with language to be added gnd,edingd and

language to be deleted s*rielce*:

Section 210.1800 Possesslon of lf;erfiu*an'e* $ynthetlc Cannablnoid

A penson commits the offense of possessiott -ol narii*an.*er-any synthetic

cannabinoid, as beth the termg are lg-defined in Section 195.010, RSMo', if

he/sheknowinglypossesses@syntheticcannabinoid,exceptas
authorized by Chapter 579 or Chapter 195, RSMo'

geqtt*n,L$ Section 210.1810 of the City of Chesterfield Municipal Code

shall 6;ffia as set forth below, with language to be added lffir-4,qrline-d" and

language to be deleted s*rielces:

3480



Section gLC.18iO Fns$Gs*lon Of A Co*trolled &rhstance.
A person commits the sffense of possession of a controlled substance, as defined
in section 195'01o, R$Mo" buirrq*, includk$" marij*'nsa if he/she knowingly
pos$e$se$ a controlled substance,,.h*I nqti* igffntu except as
authorized by Chapter $79, RSIvIo., ar Chapter 195' RSMo.

$ectlon I,III Section 210.1830 of t}re City of Chesterfield Municipal Code
shall be amended as set f<rrth below, with language to be added ffidsdiend and
language to be deleted **riel*e*:

Section 210.1830 {Inlawful Fassession Of Drug ?arapbernalin.

A person commits the offense sf unlawful possession of drug paraphernalia if
hejshe knowingly u$e$, CIr ps$$esses with intent to use, dnrg paraphernalia, to
plant, propagaie, cultivate, grow, harvest, marmfacture! cornpound, convert,
producb, pto**u*, prepare' test, analyze, pack, repaCk, store, contain, conceal,
inject, ingest, inhaie, br ctherwise introduce into the human body, a controlled
substance or a"n imitation controlled $ubstance in violation of Chapter 579'
RSMo., or Chapter 195, RSMo,..PPI i,
con$*rnin$r sta&$&i*-"qr, pf, pcfl s sinfl rnarij lrane.

fiecilqn l!f; $ection 210.1370 of the Cify of flhesterf:eld Municipal Code
shall be adopted as ftrllaws:

Section 2tO.t$?O Poesession of llllar{fuana, Over $lx Ounces

A person commits the offense of possession of marijuana, over six ounces, if he
or she knowingly posse$s more than six ounces of marijuana"

$ectlon*,Yt Seciion 210.1880 of the City of Chesterfield Municipal Code
shall be adopted as fnllows:

Section 2 1 CI. 1SSO Ualawful Di*trlbutlon

A. It is an offense ts deliver or distribute marijuana or marijuana
accessories, with or without consideration, to a person yonnger than
twenty*one {21} years of age, except as allowed by Article XIV,

, 
$ectisn 1 of the Missouri Constitution'

B. It is an offense for a person to deliver or distribute marijuana or
rnarijua.na accessories, with consideration, to a person twenty*one

{11} years of age cr older, except th<lse marijuana facilities licensed
to di*t ibgte marijuana, marijr.r.ana infused productso and
marijgana acces$ories as allowed by Article XIV, Section 1 or Section

. ? of the Missouri Constitution.



qection m.; Section 210.1890 of the City of Chesterfield Municipal Code
shall be adopted as follows:

Section 210.1S90 Mndjuann Problblted fcr Personr Uuder Twenty-One (21f
Yeare ofAge.

It is an offense for a persCIn younger than twenty-one years of age to purchase,
possess, tr$e, consume, transport marijuana or mariju,ana accessories, except as
allowed b5r Articte XIV, Section L of the Missouri Constitution'

SeC**g,_n"-I&i $ection ?10.1900 of the City of Chesterfield Municipal Code
shall be adopted as follows:

Section 2 10. 1900 Unlawft.l Mar{uana Cultivatlon.

A. It is an offense for arry p€rson or entity to poesess marijuana plants
without a valid registration for cultivation on lile with the $tate of Missouri.

B. It is an offense for any person or entity, except those facilities licensed to
do so by the State of Missouri, to keep rnore than six flowering marij.uana
plants, more than six nonflowering plants {over fourteen inches tall}, or
more than six clones {plants under fourteen inches tall}.

C. Any person or entity who cultivates marijuana plants shall keep the plants
*trO any marduana produced by the plants at one private residence, in a
locked space, and in a place that is not visible b3r normal, unaided vision
from a public place. A person or entity who vitllates this subsection may
be subject to a civil penalty not exceeding $ZSO.OO and forfeiture of the
marijuana.

$,ect*gg,VIII: Section 210.1910 of the City of Chesterfield Municipal Code
shall be adopted as follows:

Section 210.1910 Restflctlona on MariJuana ln Vehlcles.

It is an offense for any person to smoke marijuana or use marijuana-infused'
products: (1) while opeiating or being in physical control of 4 motorvehicle, train,
aircraft, motorboat, or other motorized form of transportation w|:ile it is being
operati:d; or {2} qrithin a motor vehicle, train, aircraft, motorboat, or other
rnotoriaed form of transport while it is being operated.

egm*J& Section 21O.19?0 of the City of Chesterlieid Municipal Code
shall be adopted as follows:

Section 210.1920 Sale of llla{Juana, Mar$uana-Iufused Pf,oducts, MariJuara



Aeceggories.

A. No $ales to Persons Under Twenly-One {21} Years of Age '

1" A person who sells marijuana, including marijuana*infused
products, or marijuana accessories, shall deny the sale of such
producte to any per$on wha is less than twenty-one {2i} years of
age.

n, A person or enti$ selling marijuana, includin$ marijuan-a-infused
products, or marijuana accesnories, shall require proof of age from
a Frospective purchaser or recipient if an ordinar]r.pers$n would
conchrhe on the basis of appearance that such prospective
purchaser or recipient may be under the age of twenty-one {21}.

S. The operator's or chaufifeur's license issued pursuant to the
provisibns of Section 3CI2.17?, R$Mo., or the operator's or
chauffeur'o license issued pursuant to the laws of any $tate or
possession of the United $tates to residents of those States or
possessions, or an iderrtificaticn card as provided for in Section
g6t.1B1, RSMo., or the identilication card issued by any uniformed
service of the United States, or a valid pas*port shall be presented
by the holder thereof upon request of any owner or employee of an
establishment that sellB to marijuana, including marijuana infused
products, or marijuana accessories, for tJle purpose of aiding the
iegistrant, agent or employee to deterrnine whether or not the person
is at least twenty-one {2 L} years of age when such person desires to
purchase or possess marijuana, including marijuana*infused
products, or rnarijuana accessorie$, procured from a vendor. Uptln
such presentation, the owner or employee of the establishment sha1l
compare tJre photograph and physical characteristics noted on the
license, identilication card or passport with the physical
characteristice of the per$on presenting the license, identification
card or passPort.

4. A person cited for selling marijuana, including marijuana-infused
products, or marijuana accessories to any person igss than twenty*

, one {21} years of age in violation of this $ection shali conclusively be
presumed to have reasonably relied on proof *f-age of the purchaser
or recipient, and such pefsolt shall r:at be found guiky oi Such
vioiati& if such persofl raises and proves as an affirmative defense
that such indi-viduatr prese:rted a driver's license or other

. government*issued photo identification purporting to establish that
such perscn rnras twenty*one {21"} years of age or older'



B. persons Under Twenty-One {21}Years of Age Prohibited from Purchasing.

1. Any person less than twent3r-cne {21}year$ of age shall not purchase
or *l1gmpt to purchase marijuana, including marijuana-infused
products, or marijuana accessories.

Z. Any person less than twenty-one {21} years of age sha1l not
rnisrepresent his/her age to purchase marijuana, including
marijuana-infused products, or marijuan& accessories.

g. No person shall, without authorization from the Department of
Revenue, reproduce, alter, modiff, or misrepresent any chauffeur's
license, mofor vehicle operator'e license or identification card.

C, proximity to Certain Institutions. It shall be unlawful for any person to
sell, offei for sale, give away, or deliver marijuana, including marijuana-
infused products, br marijuarra accessories, within 1,000 feet of any
church, day care center, elementary or secondary school.

D, $eparate Offense. Each violation of this Section shall constitute a separate
offense.

ff*Ption *l Section 210'1930
shall be adopted as follows:

Penalties for Marijuana Violations.

of the City of Chesterlield Municipal Code

A. A person who smokes marijuana in a public place in violation of the law

sfrlU be subject to a civil penalty not exceeding one hundred dollars.

B. A person who is under twenty-one {21} years of age who possesses, uses,

ingests, inhales, transports, delivers without consideration, or distributes

without consideration three ounces or less of marijuana, or possesses'

delivers without consideration, or distributes without consideration
marijuana acce$$ories is subject to a civil penalty not to exceed .one
hundred dollars and forfeiture of the marijuana. Any such person shall be

provided the option of attending up to four hours 9f drug education or

gounseling in lieu af the fine,

C, A person twent5r-one years {21} of age or older who posses$es not more

than twice thg| amount of marijuana allowed pursuant to ttris code,
produces not more tJ.an twice the amount of marijuana allowed pursuart

' 
lo this code, delivers without receiving any collsideration or remuneration

to a person who is at least twenty-one {21} years of age not more than twice
" the amount of marijuana allowed by this subsection, or possesses witJ:



intent to deliver not rnore than twice the amount of marijuana allowed by
this code:

1. For a first violation, is subject to a civil infraction punishable by a
civil penalty not exceeding two hundred and fifty dollars and
forfeiture of the marijuana;

Z. F''or a second violation, is subject to a civil inkaction punishable by
a civil penalty not exceeding live hundred dollare and forfeiture of
the marijuana;

A. For a third or subsequent violation, is subject to a misdemeanor
punishable by a line not exceeding one*thousand dollars and
forfeiture of the marijuana;

4. A person under twenty-one (21) years of age is subject to a civil
penalty not to exceed two hundred and fifty dollars. Any such per$on
itratt be provided the option of attending up ta eight hours of drug
education or counseling in lieu of the fine; and

d. ln lieu of payment, penalties under this subsection may be satisfied
by the performartce of community service. The rate of pay-down
associatld with said service option will be tJre greater of $ 15 or the
minimum wage in effect at the time of judgment'

D, A person who cultivates marijuana plants that are visible by normal,
unaided vision form a public place or who culdvates piants that are not
kept in a locked space is subjict to a civil penalty not exceeding $250.00
and forfeiture of the marijuana.

E. For all other controlled substance violations, a person may be punished
as provided in Sec. 1*1O of the Code.

$*qtl*n,&: This ard.inance shall be codified within the Municipal Code of
the City of Chesterlield.

S*_g,f,f_qp;I[Ii This ordinance shatl be in full force and-effect from and after
its paspage and approval.



Passed and approved this--..-day o{

Presiding Officer

ATTEST:

Vickie McGownd

2023.

Bob Nation, Mayor

FIRST READING T{ELD:



BILL !tO. ORDIIVAIYCE lTO

AS ORDIITAHCE OF THE CITY OF CIIESTERT'IELD AMENDIT{G SECTIOilS
21O.9(Xl AIID 22O.1EO OF THE CITY M{'I{ICIPAL CODD AELATPD TrO
FIREARMS REGTII"*TIOXS

W11EREAS, the $tate of Missouri has preempted the entire field of
legislation touching in any way firearms to the exclusion of any order, ordinance
ciregutation by any potitical subdivision, including the City of Chesterlield; and

WIIpREAS, RSMo 2L.75A a$ows potitical subdivisions to pass ordinances
which conform exactly with the provisions of R$Mo 571.010 to 571.070; and

WHEREAS, RSMo 21.750 further allows the City to regulate the open
carrying of firearms readily capable of lethal use or the discharge of lirearms
within fhe City, provided such brdinances comply with RSMo 252.243i arrd

WHEREA6i, the Ci,ty, having carefully studied the aforementioned statutes,
desires to update its ordinances to reflect the current state of the law; and

WHE3pAS, the City Council desires to amend the City's Code to protect

the health, safe$r, and welfare of the residents of the city.

$ow, THDRETOnp, BE rT ORTIAII{ED BY fHg CITY COUt{Cru OF THS
CITY OF CHESTERFI$LD, MIS$OURT ASI FOLLOW$:

S*pllpn l: Section 210.900 of the City of Chesterlield Municipal Cgde shall
be arnended au set forth below, witlr language to be added undeqlin".ed and
language to be deleted std€kes:

Section 210.900 Carrylng €enssalcd firearns kshibited - Penalty For
Vlolatlon.

A. It shali be a violation of this Section, punishable as hereinafter provided,

for any person to carry any concealed firearm
into:
a

1. Any Police, Sheriff or Highrvay Patrol office or station without the

consent cf the Chief Law Enforcement Of{icer in charge of that office

or station" Possession of a lirearm in a vehicle on the premises of the

oflice or station shall not be a criminal offense so long as the lirearm

is not rernoved from the vehicle or brandished while the vehicle is

on the Premises;

3481



2. Within twenty-five {25} feet of any polling place on any election day.

Fossession of a Iirearm in a vehicle on the premises of the polling

place shall not be a criminal offense so long as the firearm is not

rernoved from the vehicle or brandished while the vehicle is on the

premises;

The facility of any adult or juvenile detention or correctional

institution, prison or jail. Possession of a lirearm in a vehicle on the

prernises of any adult, juvenitre detention or correctional institution,

prison or jail shall not be a criminal offense so lcng as the lirearm is

not removed from the vehicle or brandished while the vehicle is on

the premises;

Any courthouse solely occupied by the Circuit, Appellate or $upreme

Court, or any courtrooms, administrative of{ices, libraries or other

rooms of any $uch Court whether or not ouch couft solely occupies

the building in question. This $ubsection shall aiso include, hut not

be limited to, any juvenile, family, drug or othef court oflices, any

room .or oflice wherein any of the courts or offices listed in this

Subsectiorr are temporarily conducting any business within the

jurisdiction of such courts or offices, and such other locations in

such manner a$ may be specified by Supreme Court Rule pursuant

to Subdivision {6} of Subsection (1) of Section 571.1"07, RSMo.

Nothing in this Subsection shall preclude those persons listed in

Subsection {Bl{11 of Section 210.840 while within their jurisdiction

and on duty, those persons listed in subsections {Bl{21, (a) and {10)
of Section 21O.84O, or such other persons who $erve in a iaw

enforcement capacity for a court a$ may be speci{ied by Supreme

Court Rule pursuant to $ubdivision {6} of Subsection tl) of Section

571.1"CI7, R$Mo., from carrying a concealed firearm within any of the

area$ described in this Subsection. Possession of a firearm in a

vehicle on the premises of any of the areas listed in this Subsection

shall not be a criminal offense so long as tlle lirearm is not removed

from tJ:e vehicle or brandished rvhile the vehicle is sn the premises;

Any meeting of the Chesterfield Cify Council, except that nothing in

this subsection shall preclude a member of the city council holding

a valid concealed carry permit or endorsement from carrying a

s.

4.

5.



6,

cCIncealed {irearm at a meeting of the City Council of which he/she

is a member. Possession of a firearm in a vehicle on the premises

shall not be a criminal offense so long as the firearm is not removed

from the vehicle or brandished while the vehicle is on the premises;

Any building owned, leased or controlled by the Cify of Chesterfield

identified by signs posted at the entrance to the building. This

Subsection shatl nct apply to any building used for public housing

by private person$, highways or re$t area6, firing ranges, and private

dwellings owned, leased, or contrclled hy the City of Chesterfield.

Persons violating this $ubsection may be denied entrance to the

building, ordered to leave the building and, if employees of the City'

be oubjected to disciplinary measures for violation;

Any establishment licensed to dispense intoxicating liquor for

consumption on the premises, which portion is primarily devoted to

that purpose, !{rithout the cqn$ent of the ownef or manager. The

provisions of tJ:is $ubsection shall not apply to the licensee of said

establishment. The provisions of this $ubsection shall not apply to

any bona lide restaurant open to the general public having dining

facilities for not less tJran nfty {50} persons and that receives at least

fifty-one percent {51%) of its gross annual income from the dining

facilities by the sale of food. This Subsection does not prohibit the

possession of a firearm in a vehicle on the premises of the

establishment and shall not be a criminal offense so long as the

firearm is not removed from the vehicle or brandished while the

vehicle is on the premises. Nothing in this $ubsection authorizes

any individual who has been issued a collcea:ed carry permit or

endorsement to possess any firearm while intoxicated;

Any area of an airport to which access is controlted by the inspection

of persons and propefty. Possession of a firearln in a vehicle on the

premises of the airport shalt not be a violation so long as the lirearm

is not removed from the vehicle or brandished rvhile the vehicle is

on the premises;

Any piace where the carrying of a firearm is prohibited by Federal

law;

7.

8.

9.



10. Any higher education institution or elementary or secondary school

facility without the consent of the Governing Body of the higher

education institution or a schpol officiai or the district school board,

unless the person with the concealed carry endorsement or permit

is a teacher or adrninistrator of an elementary or seconda4r school

who has been deaignated by his/her school district as a schooi

protection officer and is carrying a lirearm in a school vrithin tJrat

district, in which case no ctinsent is required" Possession of a

Iirearm in a vehicle On the premises of any higher education

institudon or elementar;r CIr secondary school facility shall not be a

criminal offense $o long as the firearrn is not removed from the

vehicle or brandished while the vehicle is on the premises;

Any portion of a building used as a child care facility without the

coneent of the manager. Nothing in this Subsection shall prevent

the operator of a child care facility in a family home from CIwning or

posses$ing a firearm or a concealed car-ry permit or endCIfsement;

Any riverboat gambling operation accessible by the public without

the consent of the ownsr Or manager pursuant to rules promulgated

by the Gaming Commission. Possession of a firearm in a vehicle on

the premises of a riverboat gambling operation shall not be a

criminal offense so long as the {irearm is not rernoved from tlre

vehicle or brandished while the vehicle is on the premises;

1g. Any gated area of an a$rusement park. Possession of a firearm in a

vehicle on the premises of tire affiusement park shall not be a

criminal offense so long as the firearm is nat removed from the

vehicle or brandished while the vehicle is on the premises;

14. Any church or other place of religious worship without the consent

of the minister or person or persons representing the religious

, organization that exercises control over the place nf religious

worship. Possession of a {irearrn in a vehicle on the premises shall

not be a criminal offense so long as the firearm is not removed from

the vehicle or brandished while tlre vehicle is on the premises;

Any private property whose owrler has posted the prernises as being

off-limits to concealed firearms by means of one {i} or more signs

11 .

12.

15.



B.

dispiayed in a conspicuous place of a minimum size of eleven {11}
inches by fourteen {14} inches wit}r the writing thereon in letters of

not less tlan one {1} inch. ?he owner, business or commercial

lessee, marrager of a private business enterprise, or any other

organization, entity or perso$ ffray prohibit per$ons holding a

concealed canry permit or endorsement from carrying concealed

firearms on the premi$es and may prohibit employees, not

authorised by the employer, holding a concealed carry permit or

endorsement from carrying concealed firearms on the properfy of

the employer. If the building or tJre premises are open to the public'

the employer of the business enterprise shall post signs on or about

the premises if carrying a concealed firearm is prohibited.
possession of a firearm in a vehicle on the premises shall not be a

criminal offense so long as the firearm is not removed from the

vehicle or brandished while the vehicle is on the premises. An

employer may prohibit employees or other persons holding a

concealed cgdjry permit or endorsement from carrying a concealed

lirearm in vehicles owned by the employer;

16. Any sports arena or stadium with a seating capacity of five thousand

{5,000) or more. Possession of a firearm in a vehicle on t}te premises

shall not be a criminal offense so long as the {irearm is not removed

from the vehicle or brandished while the vehicle is on the premises;

t?. Any hospital accessible by the public. Possession of a {irearrn in a

vehicle on the premises of a hospital shall not be a crirninal offense

so long as the firearm is not removed from the vehicle or brandished

while the vehicle is on the premises.

Any person rriolating any of the provisions of $ubsection {A} of this Section

shall be punished as follows:



SffifSpR malr be isSlJFd S...qil#tipn.for a{Le{t}Sunt."r.+.S} to-"S"J{qsfid-S*}s
hqndred 4,p-.g.pfrp f-p.n*ths fif*-isffensp..,.,If e*ep"spnd-sjfatisq-fur e"simiJ.ar
vigla,fiqn osl;#sF-*slith#] a st$..*{$onth*Sgsgd','*.qrirph-..#srsm- Fhall}-c^
{irtqd*an amp$nt not..,Io exc-e-e*d t*:S.,'hund.r*d "dollffis,,. If -F,' thiFd"
pitatis{} "lor a si:pi}S{ viQ}ption ip;nqued. }F{ithn-*$e ffee* sf thp*f,rst
citaticno""such*$rerson Q.hall be*Sned an,amount not to exceed""five

hundred dgl,lp.rs.-,.1;&igq colwictior,r,.pf.shqr$ips F.risi*,ffi,from*a,cilst+9n
i ssged sHqsual.-,{,t- t0 tllifi ,, puh $,ggtion. the *CIurt shall notif\'- the " $heri

gf the com# whish issH,qd" the cp.,nceale"d;parr"ff $Ermit"..pr' if JIE
pqrsqn is tlolder .pf a coqpeqled,caf;{F endprgpr*nepj, issue-d pnor,,to

Arigrupl ?8..,?013" -he "courl,rhall r;,.pji& thp nhprif,f;pf thq*ggun$l
which jssue,d, the csxfificate,$f cHalilication .fqr a conFealed carrH
qndoqn.qment.n$d the...dspartm'9rri" of rqypnuq'

*..,, -*'Qar$,l"i$$ of a firearrr"r, in-,*,',1gg*tion s$.-e,+ilied in subdi-visiqns-*iJ] to

Ll,?] o{,,sqh"pqctipr-r",, A o{,1}i**,sSs,tion bv",nnq*indiYiduql whq, *o es npt

holgl a ponqpaled carrKperprit ipsugd pursr;grnt to s-eptiong.$71.101
to_i;71. 121. or a cqncealed car{H endprsemenf, issued Frior t9 Aqg"ust

28.,2013-, shnll,he s:*nished hff,a fing,af,not,mqrs thaq Bnq thoqsand

dollnrs {$'1.S09.$0J,.pr bv' impnsonment for a*lmriqd. not to e*cppd

tJrree ,{3} monlhs. or by both" such $ng and im*{is"qn{nent.- as

gto-vjdgd iq Section 1OO'O80 of thiq Code oJOffLinances.

1. If tl*e viekuter helds a €€nee*led eerry peff&it er enderseme$+"i€sued
pr*rsu€r$t.t€.$tate laq'i{he vielater rna*'be si*hieet te deniel t+**e

simileu. v;elatien eeeurs wit**in *.six mertt*r peried; streh Fesse*
ehall be fined *n affieunt net t€ exeeed trr's hurdred dellars

a



'r3 If **e vielftter d€

c.

Any person

issued a concealed carry permit pursuant to sections 571.101 to 571.121,

or a concealed carry endorsement issued prior to August 28,2013, shall

carry the cgncealed carry permit or endorsement at all times the person is

carrying a concealed firearm and shall display the concealed carry permit

and a state or federal goveffrment-issued photo identification or the

efidorsement or permit upon the request of any peace officer. Failure to

comply with this subsection shall not be a criminal offense but the

concealed carry permit or endorsement holder may be issued a citation for

an amouslt not to exceed thirty-five dollars.

Sgc$gn.tk $ection 210.910 of the City of Chesterfield Municipal Code
shall be amend*fr ** set forth below, with language to be added usdgllirl9d and
language ta be deleted e+f,i€ls€t*:

Section 210.910 Open Dtsplay Of Fkearm Pcrmltted' When.

M who is lawfully carrying a firearm in a

concealed ma:rner, may briefly and openly display the lirearm to the

A,

1 .

btr

AnY Person



2.

3.

ordinary sight of another person' unless the lirearm is intentionally

displayed in an a11gry or threatening mannef, not in necessary self-

defense, and as permitted by RSMo 252'243'

identification ;l+lined i$,, RSMo 571-$30.13' *-or any-, persgn

summqrled b,y,sl,rch ofligers to aS,-qist in rngking a;fFsts gJ: preseryin$

thg *eace xhile aptuall,v,, eqsasd in assisfing such",pfficer;

*otrviptqd of pnilt}ei

Memb,*f*., of th,p aqned-,,fqrpe.* or-n?$*Rr-rqt Sqpsd whilg'-Serfp*rming

their oj[#ci+] dsff:

iudiciary:

Sf.r,ff .Sr€x+,nx}-,, ]f.h$s"S hp-rlp fid-e*dl+:*i ip*,!o €"Xpgqtp Process' clY1l o;

ql-uni*aii

*,

$.

6.

ti
K
lu
ta

s[f,per.

7"



S. Anlr,f-ederal probs,**"p.n officpfr..pr fedp.Snl-fiiffii, d$ak.,.p{.licsn,,'es *fir,ted
LHd$:, ths fedpral {ii$h,t, -dssk otnc.p"r $rpffir.qm.***3..U'$'Q' Sectiqq
449?1*r.e&n*XllgS*,pf wl;pther $l;ph of.fip.eqq are,.p,Jr,,dq,t#-,sr*T"v"ilhjn tlls
lawenfqrqernp,"Jtta$Kllp"ff lpiqripdic-tig*;

9. Anff statq,.Sr*h*,*ig"**qf;*Sqr.oi**gffrcer^ including suffi^e-Iy:pAl *Snd
me-mbprs sf-,the beffid* pf Stqbatio.e.as..d Sar.glp :

10. An:' pprpsref,e ggct*nfitad-v,*sp{, rqpstistulhs.d.p-finifion and "fulfillir,}s

dqparffisnt ofuiirblic +. &W u"r"|,dpr BS*{s S90.?S,QI

11. Anf _,porqflSr$ deHatt$ colo,.per, IQEdLiqaJl..,,exami4gr. of,,,as$iq"tAl'rt

mediseJ,examtpe$

12. Anff mllnicipal gr copnfq ,p-fgqpcutms "qttp,fne,r ",ar" assist4nt

Brogecuting at-tprqpyl qkcuit attqtnqy an+s+istan$ circsil attQfn$v;

m,Rnigi$aL associ*ter or circuit.$$4#si o.r,flnH PSI'$pn appointed,J;*' a

Spl*rt tp, he a sHegial,prq"pecqtp.f .\aihq.hqp cogr#lgted tlre tireqrrnq
sarEglt kpiqing pqsree, reqtured under RSMp""SJ 1 . I 1 1,. ? ;

13. Anl,.Jpelnber of a lkg.. eraltglent Ql' ${e prplection di$tdct,.Who i$

emsloyed on R full time basi$, as a, Sge inve$tisator,,And whghas a

valid Missouri.,.goncealgd carrv, endog$gment isrsued pti.qr to Al,l€ust
2"F,, ?Ol3.,"of a va,lid, concealed qaf,f,g,permit issgp,d 9 r#;dpr R$Mo

57 I . 19l 3.p 5?,I . J 2 I, wh*n sugh qses*A.rp, reasp"nAblX.ss$pcielpd with

or arq,,f.re,.gessaf$ to tfu*.**lfilbfrgnt o{ euqh pAr"pon's*.p"f$cial,d}rtieq;
pnd

14. Upon.ttre $n*ttgn aB$qqval"qf tbe gexsrnt+q hdyrof "a$rs*dFfiarH.sgt
qr,{irs .protecli*p dip,.frict. arry*paid "d$ de Pnr*nnpqf; p.,.q fi qe P;p*IeS4o n

distric$ 4em.F..aq,iryh.e is srq$Jo-Xsd "o..n e full-.*imp b*.Pis and wiho hqs
, av*lid.In Po

?**,,*$Ift, or a v,Alid con*gat*d q,Rf{y,,,Xh.pn,S}}c,h.RqeS 3fe,,reaso,*flhly
asqopj*ate4 rvith qx pfq,,P*p,p"sp*q*,!g thF,.fSlji1l{ngr...r"t,,o-f F*ph per*enls
p-f,Sqiq1.*dt*,,,f ie,s'

15. Af,rff p+q"- pns who q{9 enga$e* *R,p l#sfu]ngt.'pf dq{,ennp Pu'r.s.*a.nt,tp
FS$"q $63.P',Q1,



a,nog-r.l.9.-rrqt{q,,FJtgp,Fdthi"ffi ;,fi "s-d,pJlarq.

Spctton IIJ; Section 220.150 of the City of Chesterfield Municipal Codq
shall be dandid'-a* set forlh below, with language to be added $................nd-eJliltsg and

language to be deleted e*rlelsea:

Section 2?0.150 Scapon* Prohlbitad.

No person shall carry or have in his/her possession any Sresffir air pistol, air

rifli bow ald arrow or any other instrument capable of launching or firing any
projectile or noxious substance, whether propeiled by gas, air,
*pring, or any other means, while within any park, facility, trail area, roadway,
a*veway, or other public place of the Department. This Section shall not apply
to any Law Enforcdment Officer authoriztd by law to carry a weapon within the
parks, facilities and/or trail This,, +hAtl npf,, applnr tn*Iirq+rmB"*which*ffis

asMiys:

S*#gJryi This ordinance shall be codified within the Municipal Code of
the City of Chesterfield.

Fqqgion V: This ordinance shall be in full firrce and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

Passed and approved this-day ok' 2023'

Presiding Officer

ATTEST:

Bob Nation, Mayor

Vickie McGownd
FIRST READING HELD:



REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR & OTHER ITEMS 
REQUIRING ACTION BY CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

2023 Crack Sealing Project – Recommendation to authorize the City Administrator 
to enter into an agreement with Sweetens Sealing Services in an amount not to 
exceed $100,000.  This project is funded within Account 120-079-5251. (Roll Call 

Vote) Public Works Director recommends approval.  
 

Liquor License – Amrut Fusion (17392 Chesterfield Airport Rd) – has requested a 
new liquor license for retail sale of all kinds of intoxicating liquor by the drink, to be 
consumed on premise, and Sunday sales. (Voice Vote) Application has been 

reviewed by the Police Department and the Planning Department.  There are no 
known outstanding municipal violations 

 

 
 

OTHER LEGISLATION 
 
There are no other legislative action items scheduled for Monday’s meeting. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

There is no unfinished business scheduled for this meeting. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
            



1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 
Department of Public Works 
 

 

TO:   Michael O. Geisel, P.E. 
   City Administrator 
 
FROM:  James A. Eckrich, P.E. 
   Public Works Dir. / City Engineer
  
DATE:  November 8, 2023  
  
RE: 2023 Crack Sealing Project  
 

 
The Department of Public Works publicly opened bids for the 2023 Crack Sealing 

Project on November 7, 2023.  The results of the bid opening are detailed in the 
attached memorandum from Project Manager Trent Helland.  After reviewing the 
bids, Staff recommends the project be awarded to the low bidder, Sweetens Sealing 

Services, in the budgeted amount of $100,000.  This includes the low bid amount 
($89,130) and a contingency to cover additional work and change orders.  Sweetens 
Sealing Services has previously performed crack sealing for the City of Chesterfield 

and is positively recommended by City Staff.     
 

As you know, the City of Chesterfield attempts to crack seal its streets approximately 
every seven years in an effort to extend the life of its streets.  Crack sealing has many 
benefits, including retarding joint deterioration, preventing water from infiltrating the 

pavement subbase, and keeping incompressible material out of the joint, which helps 
alleviate street migration.     

 
The 2023 Capital Projects Budget contains $100,000 for crack sealing.      
 

Action Recommended 
 
This matter should be forwarded to the City Council for consideration.  Should 

Council concur with Staff’s recommendation, it should authorize the City 
Administrator to enter into an Agreement with sweetens Sealing Services in an 

amount not to exceed $100,000.     
 
 

  Concurrence: _________________________________ 
        Jeannette Kelly, Director of Finance 

 











 

 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

DATE:   November 9, 2023 
 
TO:  Mike Geisel 
  City Administrator 
  
FROM:  Denise Pozniak, Business Assistance Coordinator  
 
SUBJECT: LIQUOR LICENSE REQUEST – AMRUT FUSION   
   
              
AMRUT FUSION … has requested a new liquor license for retail sale of all kinds of intoxicating liquor by the drink, to be 
consumed on premise, and Sunday sales.  
 
Business description: Indian bar/restaurant, replacing Walnut Grill 
 
There are no known outstanding municipal violations at this location: 
17392 Chesterfield Airport Rd 
 
Chaitanya Mandadi is the managing officer. 
 
This application was reviewed and approved by both the Police Department and the Department of Planning. 
 
With City Council approval at the Monday, November 20, 2023 city council meeting, I will immediately issue this license. 
 

 


	2023-11-20 Agenda Review
	2023-11-20 Paragraphs
	11-09-2023_Planning_and_Pubilic_Works_Committee__Minutes
	Bill No. 3475 Burkhardt Place
	Bill No. 3476 Grand Reserve
	Bill No. 3477 Parking Restrictions
	Bill No. 3478 Traffic Control Signals
	Bill No. 3479 Fienup Farms
	2023-11-07 FFarms Plat 1 and 3 Street Acceptance Ordinance
	4 - FFarms Public Street Acceptance Exhibit - Plats 1 and 3
	2019-03-20 Recorded Plat 1
	20119-03-20 Recorded Plat 3

	Snow Removal Recoupment
	2023-11-20 bike trails proposal
	2023 Rivers Edge Park Proposal_R0
	Rivers Edge Park MTB Trails - Complete Loop
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	GORC Trail Planning and Design Document
	MTB_Trail_Features
	DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
	ST. LOUIS DISTRICT CORPS OF ENGINEERS
	ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 63103-2833
	REPLY TO


	Project Manager

	2023-11-20 CFAC fees
	2023-11-20 cricket
	2023-11-20 holiday banners
	2023-11-20 MUNI grant Miracle Field
	2023-11-20 wood sculpture proposal
	11-7-2023 Public Health and Safety Meeting Minutes
	Bill No 3480 Article XI Offenses
	Bill No. 3481Ordinance related to firearms regulations
	2023 Crack Sealing Project
	AMRUT FUSION
	2023-10-30 F&A Committee of the Whole Budget Workshop 2
	2023-11-06 City Council Minutes



